The Legacy 
Year of the Bear

    
Original Screenplay by Chris Pender

FADE IN:

EXT.
NEW YORK CITY NEW YORK   RAINSTORM

EXT.
CHRISTIES AUCTION HOUSE

The setting is one of CHRISTIE'S presentation

rooms where the highlight of the day is a rare

Russian art Masterpiece. The piece is on a

display pedestal and is covered with a blue

drop cloth. The Auctioneer is COLEMAN COLLINS

a tall thin man in his early forties speaking

with a noticeable London regional accent.

COLLINS

(excited)

And a good afternoon ladies and gentleman.

This piece I have personally examined and it is

by far the best that I have seen in a long,

long time.

He removes the drop cloth and an overhead spotlight

makes the art piece come to life.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

But first let me tell you about

Christie's, our sales are held

world wide. CHRISTOPHER BURGESS,

chairman of Christie's Inc., is

considered by many to be the best

auctioneer in the world.

He adjusts his pin-on-mike and folds his hands.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

He presided over the astounding sale

of VINCENT VAN GOGH'S Portrait of

DR. GACHET, which broke all auction

records when it sold for $82.5

million in 1990, and remains to

this day the most expensive item

ever sold at auction.

He starts to pace back and forth on the stage

working the fever of the auctions presence.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Our success as an auction house is fueled by

its two most important assets, renowned

expertise and exemplary customer service.

We have hundreds of specialists with years

of experience evaluating and researching

thousands of objects in their respective

areas. In 1766,  JAMES CHRISTIE opened

his London auction house and launched the

world's first fine art auctioneers. Christie's

reputation established in its early years,

when James Christie's  salesroom became a

popular gathering place for Georgian society,

as well as for astute collectors and dealers

in England.

He is a crowd pleaser to be sure as he now

has the total attention of the large gathering.

CLOSE AND PAN THE AUDIENCE

See the fever in the faces see the restlessness

as he continues in a tone suggesting a hypnotic trance.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

And now to this remarkable piece by

ANDREI RUBLEV.  Little is known

about the life of this RUSSIAN PAINTER

AND ICONOGRAPHER. His life spanned,

roughly, the years 1360 - 1430. It's difficult

to positively identify works to RUBLEV as

Russian painters, especially ICONOGRAPHERS,

did not sign their work until the 1600's.

The crowd is squirming and he still has their

total attention.

CLOSE ON A WELL DRESSED MAN

We can see his name tag and his auction ID.

SERGI ROMANOV RUSSIAN CONSULATE GENERAL.

He's in his middle thirties, nice looking

with a short haircut and very small mustache.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Historians have had to rely on written testimony

and the study of the artist's unique style to

determine which works belong to RUBLEV.

He became a monk in the latter part of his life.

He, first, entered ST. SERGIUS LAVRA and

later moved to ANDRONIKOV MONASTERY

IN MOSCOW.

CLOSE ON SERGI ROMANOV

He's taken out his very small cell phone and is

placing a call. He speaks in very low tones

and is speaking in Russian..

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Written documentation provides no doubt that

RUBLEV was the author of the famous Old

Testament Trinity icon which resided in the

Holy Trinity Cathedral at St. SERGIUS and

now is housed in the STATE TRETYAKOV

GALLERY, in MOSCOW.

CLOSE ON SERGI ROMANOV

He's seen in some sort of argument with an

unknown person. He shows extreme trauma

but regains his composure and completes

the call, thus replacing the phone in his

jacket pocket.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

This piece, OUR LADY OF VLADIMIR, CIRCA 1380'S

shows that RUBLEV was tutored in the BYZANTINE

style of ICON PAINTING. The emphasis was on the s

piritual essence of the work rather than the accuracy

of proportions. The Byzantine style of the 1300's had

become less harsh and more intimate. Both of these

characteristics are seen in OUR LADY OF VLADIMIR.

He sweeps his open hand in front of the painting.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

RUBLEV quickly developed a style of his own.

To the softer impressions of the 14th century

Byzantine method, he added something that is

uniquely Russian, a mystical, spiritual sense of

not being of this world. RUBLEV'S deep, rich

colors, gentle lines and faces which seem to

gaze, lovingly, at us from heaven itself are what

sets him apart from all other Master Painters.

CLOSE ON SERGI ROMANOV

He's seen taking notes in his small FRANKLIN ORGANIZER.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Other RUBLEV pieces, OUR SAVIOUR, CIRCA 1394

INTERCESSION CATHEDRAL, ZVENIGOROD. Other

works attributed to RUBLEV include THE FEASTS

OF THE CHURCH TIER OF THE ICONOSTASIS in the

CATHEDRAL OF THE ANNUCIATION, MOSCOW.

The crowd is still squirming and small discussions

are starting in the crowd.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Various icons and frescos in the ASSUMPTION

CATHEDRAL, VLADIMIR and wall paintings done

during the early 1400's at the DORMITION CATHEDRAL,

VLADIMIR. ARCHANGEL MICHAEL, CIRCA 1394

INTERCESSION CATHEDRAL, ZVENIGOROD. RUBLEV

portrayed a very Eastern Orthodox bit of theology in his

icon. In Orthodoxy, the Holy Trinity is believed to have

been in existence from the time of Creation. RUBLEV'S

Holy Trinity represents the guests of Abraham and Sarah,

Genesis 18:2-15 who announced that Sarah would bear

a child in her old age.

CLOSE ON AN ASIAN MAN

We can see his name tag and his auction ID.

CHIN WONG CHINESE CONSULATE GENERAL. He's

in his late thirties, serious looking with

a small scare over his left eye. He has a fixation on the painting.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Many Westerners consider this threesome to have

been God and two angels. The other interesting

point about RUBLEV'S icon is the three figures

appear as relative equals of the same age. Again,

many Western paintings of the Trinity depict God

the Father as an elderly man and the Son and Spirit

as much younger. This further displays the difference

in theology on the issue of the appearance of the

individuals of the Trinity. Ok, enough history, shall

we start the bidding for this piece.

CLOSE ON CHIN WONG

We can see CHIN WONG staring at ROMANOV.

They finally make eye contact and give a gesture

of recognition.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

As the catalog states the starting price has been

set at ONE MILLION. Oh, by the way during the inspection by Christie's experts we x-rayed the

piece and there seems to be a document of

some kind attached to the oil painting cloth

and of course considering the value of this piece

we elected not to remove it.

He sees ROMANOV raise his hand and Collins

addresses him.

COLLINS

Yes, you have a question sir?

ROMANOV

Who is the current owner of record

on this piece?

Collins looks at his catalog documentation and

places his index finger on a sentence.

COLLINS (Cont.)

After the end of the cold war a large cache of

paintings were found in a sealed room that

once belonged to one of the first Czar's of

Russia, Ivan the Terrible. We now show the

current owner of record being a numbered

account in Zurich Switzerland.

(A beat.)

Shall we start the bidding at one

five?

Chin Wong raises his hand indicating a bid.

Collins scans the room and sees ROMANOV

make a motion with his right hand.

COLLINS

Ok, Mr. ROMANOV bids two million.

Collins looks around the room again.

COLLINS

Oh please this piece is easily

worth ten times that amount!

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is one of grave concern over the

finding of a very important document. A dozen

older statesmen are seen sitting around a

large conference table. URI GREGORI the

Russian Historian and advisor, a heavy set

man with gray hair and a crew cut speaks to

the others in Russian.

GREGORI

Ivan the Terrible the first CZAR of Russia expanded

the boundaries of the Russian Empire with the

annexation of KAZAN 1552 and Astrakhan 1556,

the first non-Slavic states in the empire. Expansion

to the south also began during this period.

Increasingly powerful, Ivan turned against his advisors,

convinced that they, had caused the death of his wife.

Ivan abandoned Moscow in 1564, settling in the village

of ALEKSANDROVSK. Confused and frightened, the

people of Moscow begged Ivan to return and rule over

them. He did, with more power then before.

A large man in his early fifties speaks up.

He's the Secretary General ERIK KOLSKI.

KOLSKI

Is this where we come in URI?

GREGORI

Yes it is ERIK. Ivan the terrible

sold the southern part of Russia to the Mongolian

government for an undisclosed sum of money.

The document was signed by Ivan and witnessed

by his loyal secretary.He asked the Mongolian

government to keep the purchase secret to prevent

a possible war. Two documents were signed. One

kept by the Mongolian Government and the other

by Ivan the Terrible.To this day, the documents are

still valid and in International Court, Russia would

have to forfeit this land to Mongolia.

KOLSKI

That night someone broke into the Mongolian Governments

files and stole this very document. Rumor has it that Ivan

hid his copy in a very valuable painting. He died weeks later

before he could tell anybody where he had hidden the

document or better yet the bill of sale. Gentlemen, we have

found that document and as we speak one of our Embassy

Staff is bidding on the painting that hides the Bill of Sale.

But, we have one problem, the Chinese know about it and

are bidding on the same painting!

CUT TO:

EXT.
NEW YORK CITY NEW YORK   RAINSTORM

EXT.
CHRISTIES AUCTION HOUSE

The bidding is continuing on a multi-million

painting.
The only two bidders are Russia and

China.

COLLINS

Ok, we have eight million from the Russian Embassy.

Shall we say 8.5 from the Chinese Government?

Chin Wong raises his hand indicating a bid.

Collins scans the room and sees ROMANOV make

a motion with his right hand.

COLLINS

Ok, Mr. ROMANOV bids 8.5 million.

Collins looks around the room again.

COLLINS

Oh gentlemen, please this piece

is easily worth ten times that

amount!

Chin Wong raises his hand indicating a bid.

COLLINS

Ok, Mr. WONG bids 9 million.

Collins looks at ROMANOV again.

Collins sees ROMANOV make a motion with both hands.

COLLINS

Ok, Mr. ROMANOV bids 10 million.

Collins looks at WONG.

Wong makes a motion with his hands.

COLLINS

Ok, Mr. WONG bids 11 million.

Collins looks at ROMANOV and he nods his head.

COLLINS

Mr. ROMANOV bids 12 million.

Again COLLINS is waiting for a bid from WONG,

when he sees him make a hand single for time

out. He looks at his watch and signals WONG

ok.

COLLINS

Mr. WONG has signaled me for

a time out so I will hold

the last bid at 12 million

and will resume the bidding

in five minutes..

CLOSE ON ROMANOV

He's seen talking on his cell phone and is in a heated

discussion. He speaks in very low tones and is

speaking in Russian.

CLOSE ON WONG

He's also seen talking on his cell phone.

He speaks in very low tones and is

speaking in Chinese.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is still one of grave concern over

the finding of a very important document. A

dozen elder statesmen are seen sitting around

a large conference table. The Secretary

General ERIK KOLSKI is speaking on the phone

in Russian and is in a very heated discussion.

He finally slams the phone down and looks at

the others.

KOLSKI

(Pissed)

What is the worst case scenario if we don't get the painting?

The men in the group look at each other.

CLOSE ON BALD MAN SITTING NEXT TO KOLSKI.

The financial minister OLAF BERIA speaks to the group.

BERIA

We have limited funds allocated

for the painting. If we lose it

to the Chinese, we'll have to

activate the contingency plan.

A big Eurasian looking man ANTON KHAN the

Minister of Defense looks at the group in

a very serious manner.

KOLSKI

What is the contingency plan

Mr. Khan?

KHAN

WAR WITH CHINA. WE WILL NOT

GIVE UP HALF OF OUR COUNTRY!

CUT TO:

EXT.
NEW YORK CITY NEW YORK   RAINSTORM

EXT.
CHRISTIES AUCTION HOUSE

The bidding is continuing on the painting. The only two

bidders are still Russia and China. Coleman Collins

looks at his watch.

COLLINS

OK, gentlemen we held the bidding at  12 million

from the Russian Embassy. Shall we say 12.5

from the Chinese Government?

WONG raises his hand indicating a bid. Collins scans

the room and sees ROMANOV make a motion with

his right hand.

COLLINS

OK, Mr. ROMANOV bids 13 million.

Collins looks around the room again.

WONG raises his hand upping the bid.

COLLINS

OK, very nice Mr. WONG bids 13.5 million.

Collins looks at ROMANOV again.

CLOSE ON ROMANOV

He's seen talking in very low tones on his cell phone

and is speaking in Russian. ROMANOV MAKES

A SPECIAL MOTION WITH HIS TWO HANDS!

COLLINS

Well Jolly good, Mr. ROMANOV bids 15 million.

Now we're really cooking chaps! CHECMATE,,,,,

Mr. WONG, your Queen is in check!

CLOSE ON WONG

He's seen mumbling to himself in Chinese. He

sees ROMANOV staring at him! WONG MAKES A

MOTION WITH HIS TWO HANDS!

COLLINS

Well the Queen is clear again, Mr. ROMANOV, China bids 16 million.

What say you now! CHECMATE,,,,, Mr. ROMANOV, your King is in check!

The auction room has gone silent and the bidding war between

The Russian Bear and the Chinese Tiger has taken everyone's

breath. (A beat.)

Collins looks at ROMANOV again.

CLOSE ON ROMANOV

ROMANOV MOTIONS TO COLLINS!

COLLINS

Well OK, Mr. ROMANOV bids 17

million.  Mr. WONG, your

Queen is in check again!

CLOSE ON WONG

He's seen squirming in his chair. He sees ROMANOV

staring at him again! WONG MAKES A MOTION

WITH HIS HEAD!

COLLINS

Right on, Mr. WONG bids 18 million.  Mr. ROMANOV,

your King is in check again! (A beat.) What say you!

Collins looks at ROMANOV again.

CLOSE ON ROMANOV

ROMANOV MOTIONS TO COLLINS!

COLLINS

Well OK, Mr. ROMANOV bids 19

million.  Mr. WONG, your

Queen is in check again!

CLOSE ON WONG

WONG MAKES A MOTION WITH HIS HAND!

COLLINS

Mr. WONG bids 20 million.  Mr.

ROMANOV, your Queen is in

check again!

CLOSE ON ROMANOV

ROMANOV SHAKES HIS HEAD AS IN NO!

COLLINS

Mr. WONG bids 20 million and Mr. ROMANOV

passes. LAST CALL!

Going, gone to Mr. WONG!

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is still one of grave concern over

the finding of a very important document. A

dozen elder statesmen are seen sitting around

a large conference table. The Secretary

General ERIK KOLSKI is speaking on the phone

in Russian and is livid. He slams the phone

down and looks at the others.

KOLSKI

The Chinese have the painting.  They paid 20 million.

Let's review our contingency plan. MR.KHAN please

call the President and tell him the bad news.

CUT TO:

EXT. INTERNATIONAL COURT - ZURICH SWITZERLAND DAY

INT. INTERNATIONAL COURTHOUSE CORRIDOR - DAY

A few SWISS GUARDS are standing by the entrance.

CHEN WONG comes around the corner and heads

toward the courtroom. He opens the courtroom

doors and walks into

INT. THE COURTROOM - DAY

A few more GUARDS are standing around. THE JURORS,

nine Russian, Chinese, German and French Navy and

Army officers women, are in their place, ROMANOV

is at his table looking through some papers,

three Russian Attorneys are seated at the defense table.

The trial in a few moments from being underway and a

few people are milling about. WONG walks down the

aisle but is stopped by a voice

behind him.

MAN (O.S.)

Mr. WONG?

WONG turns around to see a MAN and WOMAN who are

Clearly Mongolian.

MAN 
(Chinese)

Please don't start world war III.

WONG

(pause)

I'll do my best.

WONG continues on and stops next to CHA LING

his attorney, who's talking with an older Chinese

military man.

LING

CHIN, I want you to meet

GENERAL LEE.

LEE

You're CHIN WONG?

WONG

Yes sir.

LEE

I'm sorry, I was expecting

someone older.

LING

So was I.

Not quite the words of inspiration WONG was hoping

to hear before he does the hardest thing he's ever

had to do.

He walks over to ROMANOV.

WONG

Last chance.  I'll flip you

for it.

JUDGE LEVITZ enters.

BAILIFF

All rise.

ROMANOV

Too late.

BAILIFF

All those having business with this

document, stand forward and you

shall be heard.  INTERNATIONAL

JUDGE ALAN LEVITZ is presiding.

LEVITZ raps the gavel.

LEVITZ without objection, the sworn

confessions of the two defendants

have been read to the jury and entered

into the court record.

ROMANOV

No objection, your honor.

WONG

No objection.

LEVITZ

Is the Russian Government prepared

to make an opening statement?

ROMANOV

(standing)

Yes sir.

ROMANOV walks to the jury box.

ROMANOV  (Cont.)

(continuing)

The facts of the case are this.

At noon on December 23rd, OUR

LADY OF VLADIMIR, CIRCA 1380'S

Painted by the Russian master

RUBLEV was sold to the Mongolian

government at CHRISTIE'S auction

house in New York City New York

for 20 million. The painting

contained a purported copy of

IVAN THE TERRIBLE'S sale of

seven Russian cities to the

country of Mongolia.

(A beat.)

WONG is seen talking to his co-attorney CHA LING.

ROMANOV  (Cont.)

These are the facts of the case.

And they are undisputed. That's

right. The story I just told you

is the exact same story you're

going to hear from CHIN WONG the

Chinese and Mongolia representative,

and it's the exact same story

you're going to hear from COLEMAN

COLLINS. Furthermore, the Government

of Russia will also demonstrate

that the Governments of China and

Mongolia are co-conspirators in

this plan to steal seven cities

from the PEOPLES REPUBLIC OF RUSSIA.

(A beat.)

CHA LING is seen writing something on her legal pad

and showing it to WONG.

ROMANOV  (Cont.)

Now, Mr. WONG, will try a little misdirection.

He's going to astonish you with stories of

ancient rumors that will dazzle

you with official sounding terms

like power of the CZAR. He'll have

no evidence, mind you, none.  But

it will be entertaining. When we

get to the end, all the magic in

the world will not have been able

to divert your attention from

the fact that this document is

worthless.  These are the facts

of the case.

(A beat.)

And they are undisputed.

ROMANOV walks back to his seat.

LEVITZ

Mr. WONG?

Before WONG even stood up, these words are coming

out of his mouth.

WONG

There is no conspiracy and there is no intent to kill

and any attempt to prove otherwise is futile because

it's just not true. When Mongolia asked my

government to look into this matter

and then later to purchase the

painting it was friendship and it

wasn't conspiracy and it wasn't to

harm the Russian people. My government

took the initiative to bid for the

painting because the Mongolian

government asked us to. We do not

stand to gain anything from the

purchase of this painting or the authenticity

of the document in

question. It's because they asked

us and as a token of friendship we complied..

WONG walks back to the table and takes his seat.

LEVITZ

Is the Russian Government ready

to call its first witness?

ROMANOV

Please the Court, the Russia calls

Mr. COLEMAN COLLINS.

While COLLINS, is being sworn in, WONG has

Started a conversation with his attorney.

He leans over to her and whispers.

ROMANOV

Mr. COLLINS, would you state

your full name and occupation

for the record, please?

COLLINS

COLEMAN COLLINS Vice President

of CHRISTIES ACUTION HOUSE.

ROMANOV

Mr. COLLINS, were you the auctioneer

During the sale of the painting

described in the court documents?

COLLINS

Yes I was.

ROMANOV

What did the painting sell for?

COLLINS

OUR LADY OF VLADIMIR sold for

$20 million.

ROMANOV

How long ago was that and was the

painting worth that much.?

COLLINS

That was six months ago. The

painting sold for $20 million,

but now I would appraise it

for 22 million.

ROMANOV

A painting like that increases

in price that quickly?

MCGUIRE

Oh god yes, that's why they

fetch such a high price..

ROMANOV

Does your company sell valuable

documents?

COLLINS

Yes we do, why?

ROMANOV

How much do you think the bill

of sale Sealed in the painting

is worth?

COLLINS

I haven't the foggiest idea? You can't commingle

art objects, they must stand

on their own.

ROMANOV

So your saying the document is worthless?

COLLINS

No, I'm not saying it's worthless,

all I'm saying is that the piece

of paper and that's all it is, is

a piece of paper has no value unless

you remove it from the painting.

ROMANOV

Thank you Mr. COLLINS.

(continuing; to WONG)

Your witness.

ROMANOV goes back to his table.  WONG stands.

WONG

Mr. COLLINS, do you think the

painting of record would have

sold for less if the bidding

war between Russia and China

hadn't transpired?

COLLINS

Yes, but that's why you have an

auction, to seek out who wants

the piece the most.

WONG

Were both of the buyers aware of

the document of record inside

the painting.

COLLINS

Absolutely, I told you and

Mr. ROMANOV about the subject

Document Before the bidding

started.

WONG

Considering what you now know about

the document in the painting, how

much value do you append to the

document by itself?

COLLINS

Considering everything, including

this court, I would appraise the

painting at 22 million and the

document as priceless!

WONG

How much is priceless?

COLLINS

No dollar, Yen or Rubles can buy this

document, nothing, NADA, no amount

of any kind!

WONG

Your witness.

ROMANOV

Mr. COLLINS, I don't understand what

you mean when you say there wasn't

enough money to buy this document.

COLLINS

OK, let me put it this way. Do you think

you could buy one of the famous paintings

from the Vatican? I don't think so, So we

say, they are priceless!

WONG

Has the court had you remove the

document of record from the painting

and validate its age?

COLLINS

Yes. We had it carbon dated, and its

CIRCA 1400, no doubt about it!

WONG

Have you authenticated the signatures

on the document of record?

COLLINS

Yes, the signatures are valid!

WONG

No further questions.

CUT TO:

MOSES YOUNG, a young art expert, is being sworn in.

YOUNG

Moses Young, appraiser and art critic

For CHRISTIES New York.

ROMANOV

Mr. Young were you present when the

document of record was removed from

the painting?

YOUNG

Yes sir.

ROMANOV

Would you tell the Court the substance

Of that event?

YOUNG

Mr. WONG the owner of record asked

us to remove the document. This

is a very delicate Operation,

because the age of the canvas

and vellum can cause problems

that can't be repaired. Well

my crew and I spent 72 hours

carefully removing the document

and we were successful. The

painting is stand alone and so

is the document.

WONG

Was the document readable?

(pause)

The entire court has paused and the eyes of

everyone is on the pedestal rolled into the

room? Both the painting and the document are

clearly in view.

YOUNG

The document was written in Cyrillic

Russian. GUSTAV MANTOV my interpreter

had trouble making out some of the words.

WONG

And?

YOUNG

CHRISTIES has thousands of dollars

of special equipment to do this

kind of duty. So we spent another

100 or so hours preparing the

document for certification.

WONG

Is the document certifiable?

YOUNG

Yes it is.

WONG

(Looking at ROMANOV)

Your witness.

ROMANOV

When you say certifiable, is

that 100%?

WONG

Objection

LEVITZ

Sustained.

YOUNG

About 78%?

WONG

Please the Court, is Mr. ROMANOV

honestly asking this witness to

testify as to what percent? Anything

over 50% is considered certifiable.

LEVITZ

Mr. Young is that true?

YOUNG

Yes but only for appraisal and

insurance purposes.

ROMANOV

Mr. Young, you are the expert.

If the document of record was

appraised for one billion and

you had the money, would you

expect 78% or 100%?

WONG

Objection!

LEVITZ

Sustained. Answer the question Mr. Young

YOUNG

No I wouldn't, not unless it was 100%.

ROMANOV

Your witness?

WONG

Tell me Mr. Young why you

wouldn't buy it.

YOUNG

The 78% means that only

that much was readable,

thus certifiable.

WONG

Why wasn't 22% readable?

YOUNG

When a 700 year old painting

is stored in a vertical

position the oil paint tends

to bleed through the canvas.

The vellum or parchment

document was glued to the

back of the canvas and the

chemical action of the oil

paint against the paper caused

a flat spot in the lower

quarter panel.

WONG

What is a flat spot?

YOUNG

A flat spot is where the ink

from the document and the

filtered oil paint from

the old painting blend and

cancel each other out.

WONG

What do you have left?

YOUNG

Ghost images. We have a process

where we introduce a chemical

that finds what's left of the

ink pigment and enhances it.

Then we run the image through

our computers and further

enhance the lettering. We get

about 50% back from what was

lost from the flat spot.

WONG

(To ROMANOV)

Your witness.

ROMANOV

Mr. Young, considering everything

you know about the painting and

the document would you feel strong

enough about it's validity that

you would ask your country to go

to war over it, maybe even nuclear

war?

YOUNG

Nothing is worth that?

ROMANOV

Thank you, I have no more

questions.

Wong shakes his head as in no and Young gets off the stand,

and WONG watches while he walks past ROMANOV.

A barely perceptible exchange occurs between the

eyes of YOUNG and ROMANOV.

WONG makes a decision.

WONG

My Government calls SERGAY

MOLATOV the chief Slavic

historian at NOTRE DAME

University, USA. Please the

Court, I understand Mr.

MOLATOV is the definitive

historian for most Slavic

countries. Mr. MOLATOV

please tell the court

what a CZAR is and how

much power a CZAR has.

MOLATOV

The first CZAR was of course

IVAN the Terrible. A CZAR is

given total power by his

country to do whatever is

necessary for the best

interests of that country.

WONG

You say total power?

MOLATOV

He can start a war, end a war

or execute a million people.

He's been given the power

without question by his country

and his people.

WONG

Mr. MOLATOV HAVE YOU EXAMINED

THE DOCUMENT OF RECORD AND DO

YOU FIND IT AUTHENIC IN EVERY

WAY?

MOLATOV

Without any question it's

authentic and yes the

signature is that of Ivan

the terrible.

WONG

Your witness.

ROMANOV

Why in gods name would IVAN the

CZAR of Russia sign over half

of his country for a few pieces

of gold.

MOLATOV

I don't know why he would do that

but I can give you a good reason.

ROMANOV

Proceed.

MOLATOV

He was afraid of the MONGOLS. They

had protected his southern borders

for hundreds of years. He knew the

Chinese were trying to win over the

Mongols so he decided to make them

partners in his country and he

probably knew he could take the

seven cities back anytime he wanted.

ROMANOV

I have nothing else.

WONG

Nor I.

LEVITZ

Then we'll adjourn for the day.

You can call your next witness

in the morning.

CUT TO:

INT.  THE COURTROOM - DAY

Dr. KIN CHANG, a Chinese Historian in his mid-50's,

is on the stand.

WONG

Dr. CHANG, what power does a

Russian Czar have?

CHANG

A Russian Czar has total power.

WONG

Does he have the power to start

or end a war, execute thousands

of people etc, etc?

CHANG

Yes and more!

WONG

And more?

CHANG

He is never held accountable for

anything he does.

ROMANOV

Your Honor, we object at this

point.  The witness is dramatizing.

WONG

Dr. CHANG is a famous historian

and witness, in this courtroom

his opinion isn't considered

dramatization.

ROMANOV

Dr. CHANG is a professor of Chinese

History, not Russian, and things

were different 500 years ago!

LEVITZ

A point which I'm confident you'll

illustrate to the jury under cross

examination, so I'm sure you won't

mind if his opinion is admitted now.

ROMANOV

Not at all, sir.  Objection withdrawn.

ROMANOV sits.

WONG

Doctor CHANG, don't you think

that the Czar of Russia selling

seven cities to the Mongolians

is a little strange?

CHANG

Absolutely not!

WONG

Why do you say that?

CHANG

They were notorious for taking,

gold, precious art objects, food

and even women, when ever they

wanted.

WONG

Do you think that's how he

obtained the painting of

record?

CHANG

There are literally tons of art

objects the Russian Czars would

take and yes I think he found

the painting in a monastery and

had the monks executed. They

were godless bastards!

WONG

Thank you, sir.

ROMANOV gets up.

ROMANOV

Dr, Chang, you testified that

the Czar of record stole the

painting of record and killed

the owners, what proof do you

have of this?

CHANG

Oh Yes and more!

ROMANOV

Let me ask you, is it possible

that over a period of 500 years

old wives tales were dramatized

to keep the interest?

CHANG says nothing for a moment.

ROMANOV

(continuing)

Well isn't it possible?

CHANG

China takes its history serious,

this is the only way we have

been able to stay so strong for

thousands of years, no lies all

truths Mr. ROMANOV!

ROMANOV

Now really Dr. Chang, do you

expect us to believe that?

CHANG

(beat)

When a person is given unlimited

power he does whatever he wants!.

ROMANOV

Dr. Chang, do you dislike the

Russian people?

CHANG

I do not dislike anyone or

anything and as a practicing

Buddhist it's against my

religion to hate anyone.

ROMANOV

Is it possible someone could

have faked the documents?

CHANG

Anything is possible.

ROMANOV

Have you checked the document

of record?

CHANG

Yes I have, several times!

ROMANOV

Is it a fake?

CHANG

(beat)

I checked the painting and the

document and both are 100% valid!

ROMANOV

You're an art expert too?

CHANG

Yes I am, specializing in early

icons and other religious pieces.

ROMANOV

Would you pay 20 million for

the painting?

CHANG

Yes, in a minute.

FADE IN:

ROMANOV has gone back to his table where

his co-attorney SERGI KOMANSKI a young

man in his late twenties, has handed him

some documents.  He shows them to CHANG.

ROMANOV

Doctor, is this your signature?

CHANG

Yes it is.

ROMANOV

Are you sure?

CHANG

(reading document)

Yes, that is my signature on one

of my autographed books.

ROMANOV

Dr. Chang, how much do you think the

document of record is worth?

CHANG

Priceless.

ROMANOV

And did you carefully check the

signature on the document of

record?

CHANG

Yes I did and, it was Ivan the

terrible signature.

Still holding the original piece of paper with

Dr. Chang's signature. Wong hands it to Levitz.

ROMANOV

Your honor, we paid a person to

sign this with Dr. Chang's

signature.

WONG

Object.  Move to strike.

LEVITZ

Sustained.  Strike it.

ROMANOV

No more questions, you honor.

WONG stands immediately.

WONG

Dr. CHANG, do you wear glasses?

CHANG

Yes I do but I broke my only pair

last night.

KOMANSKI stands.

KOMANSKI

Your Honor, we re-new our objection

to CHANG'S testimony, and ask that

it be stricken from the record. And

we further ask that the Court

instruct the jury to lend no weight

to this witness's testimony.

WONG and LEE are dying, but they're trying

to keep their poker-faces. LEVITZ'S gonna

try to be polite about this, but he thought

he made himself clear.

LEVITZ

The objection's overruled, counsel.

KOMANSKI

Sir, the defense strenuously objects

and requests a meeting in chambers

so that his honor might have an

opportunity to hear discussion before

ruling on the objection.

LEVITZ

The objection of the defense has been

heard and overruled.

KOMANSKI

Exception.

LEVITZ

Noted.

The witness is an expert and the court will hear his opinion.

WONG

Doctor, in your expert, professional

opinion, the document of record is

100% valid?

CHANG

Yes.

WONG

Thank you, sir, I have no more

questions.

Looking at ROMANOV and he has nothing.

LEVITZ

Dr. CHANG, you may step down.

WONG

Please the Court, while we reserve

the right to call rebuttal

witnesses if the need arises, the

Government of Mongolia rests.

LEVITZ

We'll stand in recess until tomorrow

at which time the defense will call

it's first witness.

LEVITZ raps his gavel.

BAILIFF

All rise.

And the courtroom begins clearing out. ROMANOV,

KOMANSKI and WONG are packing up their various

papers.

ROMANOV

I strenuously object?  Is that

how it works?  Objection.

Overruled. Please let me take

a moment to reconsider.

KOMANSKI

I got it on the record.

ROMANOV

You also got it in the jury's

head that we're afraid of Dr.

Chang. You object once so they.

can hear you say he's not a

signature expert.  You keep

after it and it looks like

this great thing we did was

just a bunch of fancy lawyer

tricks.

KOMANSKI

Christ, Wong, even had the Judge

saying CHANG was an expert!

ROMANOV

SERGI, you made a mistake.  Let's

not relive it.

There's an uncomfortable silence.

KOMANSKI

I'm gonna go call my wife.

I'll meet you tonight.

SERGI starts to leave.  He turns and says

KOMANSKI

Why do the Chinese hate us

so much?

ROMANOV

They feel because the Mongolians

are Asian and we are White, they

are brothers we are not.

A long silence.  ROMANOV makes a decision  Alright.

Everybody take the night off.

SERGI

(continuing)

I apologize, I,--

ROMANOV

It's alright.  We've been working

20 hour days for three and a half

weeks straight. Take the night off.

Go see your wife, see your daughter.

KOMANSKI, do whatever it is you

do when you're not here.

CUT TO:

INT.  THE COURTROOM - DAY

URI GREGORI'S on the stand.  What drives

ROMANOV'S entire examination of him is

this, ROMANOV'S got him.  He's gonna win.

At least this round.  All he has to do is not

let his emotions take control

of his professional skill.

SERGI will have files and documents ready to

hand ROMANOV as he needs them.

ROMANOV

Mr. GREGORI, in your opinion, is

the document of record valid?

GREGORI

(Broken English)

I'd say it was a very poor replica.

ROMANOV

Mr. GREGORI, you have spent your

whole life validating valuable

documents for Russia, have you

ever made a mistake?

GREGORI

No.  As you know Mr. ROMANOV,

in Russia we are only permitted

one mistake, our last one.

ROMANOV

We appreciate that, but you're

under oath now, and I think

the jury needs more background.

GREGORI

I'm aware of my oath.

ROMANOV'S handed some more files.

ROMANOV

Mr. GREGORI, in all of Russian

History have you ever heard of

a leader selling off some of

his large cities to a foreign

country?

GREGORI

Never, he would give up his

life first!

ROMANOV

Why do you say that?

GREGORI

Russia the mother country is like

god to use and you don't sell

god!

ROMANOV

Who would forge a document like

this and for what reason?

GREGORI

I'm sure I don't know who would

do this but I will give you a

good guess and for what reason.

OSCAR BEN LADEN the richest and

most powerful terrorist in the

world. A beat. He want's to start

a war between Russia and China,

he's a bad one!

ROMANOV

Do you recall an incident involving OSCAR

BEN LADEN when he said U.S. troops will

eave Saudi Arabia when Islamic terrorists

send the bodies of American troops and

civilians home in wooden boxes and coffins.

We don't differentiate between those dressed

in military uniforms and civilians. They are

all targets in this FATWA.

GREGORI

A multi-millionaire who runs a private terror network of

Islamic extremists from a hideaway in the mountains of

Afghanistan. He has surface-to-air missiles, and probably has a suit-case Nuclear bomb.

ROMANOV

OSCAR BEN LADEN may be the most dangerous non-state

terrorist in the world. He Has a Global Reach linked to almost every Muslim extremist movement in the world in the last five years.

GEGORI

And he's been linked to RAMZI YOUSEF, the convicted mastermind of the World Trade Center bombing. WALDI KHANN a Muslim youth who in Afghanistan was nicknamed THE LION. He's one of the best terrorists and is BEN LADENS'S best friend. They fought together in the same trench against the Russians.

WONG

Your honor this is all speculation!

LEVITZ

Mr. ROMANOV make your point!

ROMANOV

Thank you Mr. GREGORI?

Your witness.

WONG

So what your saying is that

BEN LADEN is trying to start

a war between China and

Russia?

GREGORI

Yes.

WONG

I think it's just a fairy tale

brewed up by you and the defense

to discredit the document of

record.

ROMANOV

Objection.  Argumentative.

LEVITZ

Sustained.

(to WONG)

Watch yourself, counselor.

ROMANOV

Do you have any proof to show

the court that this whole

affair is a conspiracy?

GREGORI

My government has been intercepting

messages between BEN LADEN and

several operators world wide.

ROMANOV

I would like to call the next

witness for the defense,

GENERAL ANTON KHAN Russian

minister of defense. Thank you

Mr. GREGORI your excused.

URI GREGORI steps down and a very large Eurasian looking man takes the stand. The Bailiff swears

in the next witness.

KHAN

General ANTON KHAN, Russian

Minister of defense.

ROMANOV

General, tell us about BEN LADEN?

KHAN

He said Russians must die, the sooner the better. The threat, two months ago, was taken very seriously, the Russian Government reinforced all military bases and warned all Russians traveling in the Mid-east to be extremely cautious. He Organized a Terror Summit and convened a meeting of

fundamentalist extremists and sponsors of terrorism. More than 150 clerics named themselves the International Islamic Front

for the JIHAD against Jews and Crusaders, and issued a variety of FATWAS.

ROMANOV

Why does he hate the Russians so much?

KHAN

BEN LADEN claims the Russians killed all of his family in

the Russian/Afghanistan war.

ROMANOV

Is it just the Russians that he hates?

KHAN

He hates us, the Chinese, Mongolians he's just a

fanatic. But BEN LADEN'S

is the one that most

concerns Russian security

analysts. OSCAR BEN LADEN threatened to attack

Russian women and children

as well as soldiers if

necessary.

ROMANOV

How dangerous is he?

KHAN

Extremely dangerous. His people are well-equipped, with an arsenal that includes surface-to-air missiles. He's a role model for a lot of Islamic militants in the world today. An exiled Saudi national who now enjoys the

protection of Afghanistan's hard

line TALIBAN regime,

ROMANOV

I understand he has experienced troops who fought with him on the front lines against the Russians in  the Afghan war.

KHAN

Yes, and he has a track record. Russian officials believe BEN Laden supplied the troops and rocket launchers that shot down U.S. helicopters in Mogadishu, Somalia in October 1993, killing 18 servicemen.

ROMANOV

Don't they also believe he's behind the November 1995 bombing of a Saudi base in Riyadh that killed six Americans. And the Russian government has been zeroing in on its search for evidence with which to prosecute BEN Laden for his involvement in various plots. But until the Russian grand jury hears enough evidence to indict BEN LADEN, he won't have to hide. And if the U.S. does charge him, it will be faced with the challenge of extracting him from his enclave in the remote Afghan mountains, where he is surrounded by as many as 3,000 followers with guns

and rocket launchers.

ROMANOV

General Khan, do you believe this

document could lead to World

War III?

KHAN

Yes, Russia will not give up one

inch of it's mother country.

ROMANOV

Is Russia strong enough to win

over China and Mongolia?

KHAN

Yes.

ROMANOV

If this document is pursued

when could the war start?

KHAN

When an intruder crosses our

borders!

(A beat.)

KHAN  Cont.

In an all out war with China and

Mongolia, they will lose!

ROMANOV

(beat)

Do you think the United States

and the United Kingdom will

side with Russia or China?

KHAN

I don't know?

WONG

Please the court, the witness can't

possibly testify as to what the

United States or the United Kingdom

will do. Your honor, all of this is speculation and conjecture and we

object to this entire line of

questioning as argumentative and

irrelevant.

LEVITZ

The Government's objection is

sustained, Mr. ROMANOV, and I

would remind you that you're

questioning is now out of the

subject matter and falls as

information only.

WONG

Thank you judge.

ROMANOV looks over at KOMANSKI.  They share a brief moment before ROMANOV turns back to KHAN.

ROMANOV

General, we thank you for taking

the time to attend this court.

(to WONG)

Your witness.

WONG

I have just one question.

WONG doesn't even wait a second before he says--

WONG

General KHAN, are you Chinese,

Mongolian or Russian, by birth?

But KHAN isn't listening--he's glaring at ROMANOV.

WONG

(continuing)

General KHAN, did you hear me --

KHAN

My mother is Russian and my

father is Mongolian.

WONG

Thank you.

CUT TO:

INT.  THE COURTHOUSE CORRIDOR - DAY

KOMANSKI is going over last-minute details with ROMANOV.

KOMANSKI

You remember the order of the questions?

ROMANOV

Yes.

KOMANSKI

Are you sure?

ROMANOV

Yes.

KOMANSKI

And you'll use small words?

ROMANOV

Yes.

KOMANSKI

He gets rattled when he doesn't

understand something.

ROMANOV

KOMANSKI--

KOMANSKI

I'm just saying go slow.

ROMANOV

I'm going to go slow.

KOMANSKI

Okay.

ROMANOV

Alright.

KOMANSKI

And get him off as fast as you can.

ROMANOV

KOMANSKI!

KOMANSKI

What?

ROMANOV

He's gonna be fine.

They turn and head into the

courtroom as we HEAR WONG in

VOICE OVER ...

WONG (V.O.)

My Dear Mrs. LOWENSKI

ROMANOV is at the end of his examination of MRS SONIA LOWENSKI the handwriting expert.

ROMANOV

Mrs. LOWENSKI, I want you to tell

us one last time, is the document

of record valid?

LOWENSKI

Yes, the document is valid.

ROMANOV

Thank you.

(to WONG)

Your witness.

WONG

No further questions?

CUT TO:

INT.  THE COURTROOM - DAY

Everyone stands as LEVITZ enters. WONG is

missing.

LEVITZ

(to ROMANOV)

Call your witness.

ROMANOV

Where's WONG?

KOMANSKI

He'll be here.

ROMANOV

Defense calls the Prime Minister

of the new Russian Republic,

SERGAI GORI.

GORI is escorted in through a side door. A slender bald man in his early fifties He's wearing his dress uniform, adorned with the appropriate medals.

BAILIFF

Mr. Prime Minister, do you solemnly

swear that the testimony you will

give in this court will be the truth,

the whole truth, and nothing but the

truth so help you God?

GORI

Yes I do.

ROMANOV

Would you state your name and

position for the record please.

GORI

(Broken English)

Russian Prime Minister SERGAY GORI.

WONG

Thank you, sir, will you have a seat,

please.

GORI sits.

ROMANOV

Mr. PRIME MINISTER, when you learned

of this document of record what was

your impression?

GORI

Very depressed, very depressed.

ROMANOV

Why?

GORI

I believe someone is trying to

start world war III!

ROMANOV

And why do you think that?

WONG

Objection.  I'd like to know just what

defense counsel is implying?

ROMANOV

I'm implying simply that, at present,

Russia has a plan.

WONG

Surely Prime Minister GORI doesn't

need to appear in this courtroom

to confirm that information.

ROMANOV

I just wasn't sure if the court

was aware of the Russian offer.

LEVITZ (O.S.)

The witness is aware, the Court

is aware, and now the jury is

aware.  We thank you for bringing

this to our attention.  Move

on Mr. ROMANOV.

ROMANOV

Mr. Prime Minister will you please

tell the court about the Russian

offer?

GORI

My government has a plan to end

this situation once and for all

so we can maintain the peace of

the world.

ROMANOV

And what is this plan sir?

GORI

The Mongolian government has

secured loans from the Russian

government in the amount of

7.7 Billion including interest.

ROMANOV

Why?

GORI

Their economy was in serious

condition so they came to us

for loans to keep their

country going.

ROMANOV

And this was over a period of

how many years?

GORI

Ten years, 1986 through 1996?

ROMANOV holds up documents from his table.

ROMANOV

We have copies of the loan

documents signed by both

the Russian and Mongolian

governments and cosigned,

by the Chinese government.

We have provided copies for

the BAILIFF your honor.

A serious of discussions breaks out among the press and the disruption flares into the jury.

LEVITZ

(Slamming the gavel

on the desk)

ORDER! Thank you Mr. ROMANOV

for providing the copies.

The courtroom starts to quite down.

ROMANOV

Mr. Prime Minister, why were the

documents co-signed by the Chinese

government?

GORI

My government felt Mongolia

was not strong enough credit

wise to handle loans of that

size.

ROMANOV nods and decides to move on.

GORI steals a quick glance at the two Chinese Officials sitting out in the courtroom.

ROMANOV

Mr. Prime Minister, what is the offer?

GORI

The Russian government has offered

to forgive all of the Mongolian

loans If this matter with the

document signed by CZAR IVAN can

come to a close.

ROMANOV

When was this offer made?

GORI

(continuing)

It was made last week.

ROMANOV

And what was the response?

GORI

They rejected it?

WONG

I object, this is not about

a loan between countries!

ROMANOV

The defense didn't have an

opportunity to depose of

this offer, your honor. I'd

ask the Court for a little

latitude.

LEVITZ

A very little latitude.

ROMANOV

Mr. Prime Minister what was their

reason for  rejecting the offer?

GORI

They were not happy with the

interest.

ROMANOV

Why?

GORI

Principal loan was 5 billion and

interest was 2.7 billion.

ROMANOV

What difference would it make the

loan was forgiven, they owe nothing?

WONG

Your honor. They rejected the offer

because the interest was out of line

so accepting the offer would make

the high interest loan acceptable.

ROMANOV

(to WONG)

I don't understand?

LEVITZ

Gentlemen.

(to ROMANOV)

You better get somewhere fast

with this, Mr. ROMANOV.

ROMANOV

Yes your honor.

GORI

I don't understand either.

ROMANOV gets a document from his table.

WONG

Please the Court, is there a question

anywhere in our future?

LEVITZ

Mr. ROMANOV, I have to--

ROMANOV

Mr. Prime Minister was there

a counter offer?

That landed.  On the JURY, LEVITZ, WONG ...

GORI

Yes.

ROMANOV

(continuing)

I'll tell you what, we'll get

back to that one in a minute.

KOMANSKI hands ROMANOV the computer printout.

ROMANOV

(continuing)

This is a copy of the counter

offer.

Handing GORI the copy --

ROMANOV

(continuing)

Is that the counter offer?

GORI

Yes.

ROMANOV

What was the counter offer, sir?

GORI

They want loan forgiven and

ten billion dollars over

five years.

WONG

Judge--

LEVITZ

I'm gonna put a stop to this now.

KOMANSKI hands ROMANOV another document

ROMANOV

Your honor, Russia thought the

counter offer was tantamount

to extortion, so we rejected it.

WONG

Object. Your Honor, it's obvious

that Mr. ROMANOV'S intention this

morning is to smear a high ranking

members of the Republic of China.

In the desperate hope that the mere appearance of impropriety will win

him points with the jury.

WONG

(continuing)

It's my recommendation sir, that

Mr. ROMANOV receive an official

reprimand from the bench, for

trying to smear the Chinese

government.

LEVITZ ponders this a moment.

LEVITZ

(pause)

Overruled.

WONG

Your honor--

LEVITZ

The objection's noted.

ROMANOV

(beat)

Mr. Prime Minister. Has the

Russian government considered

a counter offer?

GORI'S smiling ...

... and now he can't help but let out a short laugh.

GORI

There will be no counter offer.

WONG

(Upset)

Is this funny, sir?

GORI

No. It's not. It's tragic.

ROMANOV

Do you have an answer?

GORI

Absolutely.  Mongolia and China

want World War III!

The courtroom is silenced.

ROMANOV looks around the room, sees that the world is waiting for him to do something ...

LEVITZ

Mr. ROMANOV?

ROMANOV says nothing.  He glances over to WONG.

LEVITZ

(continuing)

Mr. ROMANOV, do you have anything

further for this witness?

ROMANOV

I'M FINISHED YOUR HONOR.

YOUR WITNESS.

WONG doesn't respond.  GORI gets up to leave.

GORI

(standing)

I will go now.

And GORI starts to leave, but he's stopped by--

WONG

Excuse me, I didn't dismiss you.

GORI turns around.

GORI

I beg your pardon.

WONG

I'm not through with my

examination. Sit down.

GORI

YES.

ROMANOV

Mr. Wong will you please show

my Prime Minister some respect?

GORI

(to LEVITZ)

I'd appreciate it if he addressed

me as Prime Minister. I believe

I've earned it.

LEVITZ

Mr. Wong you will address the

witness as Mr. Prime Minister.

GORI

(to LEVITZ)

Thank you your honor.

GORI goes back to the stand.

GORI

(continuing)

I'm ready?

WONG

Prime Minister, will your

country  go to war over

this document of record?

GORI

Yes.

WONG

Will you go to nuclear war over this document of record?

LEVITZ

Mr. WONG, I think we've covered

this, haven't we?

WONG

Please your honor, I'm almost

finished.

LEVITZ

Very well, answer the question

Prime Minister.

ROMANOV

Your Honor, this is ridiculous,

the Prime Minister has already

answered the question.

LEVITZ

Patience Mr. ROMANOV.

If you looked closely at GORI, you could see a drop of sweat. He gets rattled very easily, then comes apart.

LEVITZ

Prime Minister please answer

the question.

GORI

This is ridiculous.

WONG

Mr. Prime Minister --

GORI

Yes, I will,,,, we will go to

nuclear war if we have to.

This is a matter of national

pride. We used he be the most

powerful nation in the world.

Now we are reduced to almost

a third world power. We have

thousands of nuclear bombs

and yes we will go to nuclear

war.

ROMANOV

Mr. WONG, are you finished?

WONG

Yes I am, you may step down Mr. Prime Minister.

ROMANOV

Mr. WONG are you clear on what

you wanted?

WONG

Crystal clear?

ROMANOV speaks with the quiet confidence that comes from knowing you're about to drop your opponents

ROMANOV

(continuing)

Mr. WONG, why would your country want

to go to war over just a few cities

that have no value except to the

people that were born there and a have

a few simple pieces of land, so tell

me what is then the real reason why

China is pushing this thing,,,

And WONG has no answer.

Nothing.

He sits there, and for the first time, seems to be lost.

WONG

We have no interest in this

other than for the equitable

disposition of lands and

monies.--

ROMANOV

But that's not what you and your

country are doing, you keep

telling Mongolia not to make

a deal, why?.

WONG

(pause)

Your honor, may we adjourn?

ROMANOV

You said, crystal clear.

About what?

WONG

Figure of speech.

Everyone's sweating now.  Everyone but ROMANOV.

ROMANOV

We have information that your

country is trying to recover

over 100 million that was

loaned to Mongolia and that

they defaulted on fifteen

years ago, right?

WONG

You little bastard.

KOMANSKI

Your Honor, I have to ask for a

recess to--

ROMANOV

I'd like an answer to the question,

Judge.

LEVITZ

The Court will wait for an answer.

WONG

Object!

LEVITZ

Counsel.

ROMANOV will plow through the objections of WONG and the admonishments of LEVITZ.

ROMANOV

And to make it worse you're

pushing the Mongolians into

a war they don't want!

WONG

Your Honor--

LEVITZ

That'll be all, counsel.

ROMANOV

Isn't true that when Mongolia

received the 5 billion loan

from my government they kicked

back 2 billion to your country?

WONG

Judge--

ROMANOV

You and your country have crafted

this whole incident so they can

recover the balance of what you

owe them.

WONG

Damn it ROMANOV!!

ROMANOV

I'll ask for the forth time.

This is a scam isn't it?

Silence.  From everyone.  LEVITZ and WONG

they're all frozen. ROMANOV simply takes

control of the room now.

ROMANOV

Please the court, I suggest the

jury be dismissed so that we

can move to the next step.

Silence.

LEVITZ looks to WONG.

LEVITZ

Mr. WONG?

WONG is frozen.  He doesn't know what to do.

LEVITZ

The BAILIFF will take the jury to

an ante-room where you'll wait until

further instruction.

The BAILIFF begins leading the JURORS out of the room.

GORI

What the hell's going on?

No one will say anything until the jurors are out of the room.

GORI

(continuing)

Your honor, what the hell's

going on?  I'm getting on a

plane and going back to my

country.

LEVITZ

You are free to leave Mr. Prime

Minister.

WONG

What a mess.

ROMANOV

No shit?

The courtroom is silent from ROMANOV'S statement.

GORI shakes his head.

GORI

Mr. Wong, you and your people

are not civilized. You have

no idea how to defend a nation.

All you did was weaken a country

today, Mr. WONG. That's all

you did.

ROMANOV takes a handkerchief from his pocket and wipes some sweat from his hands.

SLOW DISSOLVE TO

INT.  THE COURTROOM - LATE AFTERNOON

There's low murmur in the room as the JURORS are being led back into their box.

Everyone's in place.

LEVITZ enters.

BAILIFF

All rise.

And sit when LEVITZ sits.

LEVITZ

Have the jurors reached a verdict?

JURY FOREMAN

We have, your honor.

The BAILIFF takes all the slips of paper from the FOREMAN and brings them to LEVITZ.

ROMANOV, WONG AND KOMANSKI stand.

LEVITZ

(reading)

The JURY finds in favor of the

Mongolian government. The

defendants are hereby ordered

to release the seven cities ...

LEVITZ clears his throat.

For the record the seven cities in the

court records are the following,

TASHANTA, KHANDAGAYTY, NARYN, MONDY, ZAKAMENSK, NAUSHKI AND MANGUT. The

Seven cities will now fall within the jurisdiction of the following Mongolian Provinces, BAYAN-OLGIY, UVS, DZAVHAN, HOVSGOL, BULGAN, SELENGE, HENTIY AND DORNOD.

(A BEAT.)

LEVITZ

(continuing)

This court is adjourned.

LEVITZ raps his gavel and leaves the room.

BAILIFF

All rise. Court is adjourned.

FADE IN

EXT.
GENEVA SWITZERLAND   DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations is addressing the United nations representatives.

SECRETARY-GENERAL:

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I have just finished briefing the Security Council,

and I am pleased to tell you that I had a general sense of approval from the membership as to the agreement that I signed in Moscow. Obviously, there are details that will have to be worked out and explanations that must be given, but none of it gives me and my team any difficulties. And I am convinced that once the explanations are given we will have unanimous and strong Council support.

The representative from India raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

INDIA REP

Mr. Secretary, what have the Russians agreed to?

SECRETARY

They have agreed to hold any military action against China and Mongolia until the cooling off period ends in 90 days.

INDIA REP

Thank you.

SECRETARY

I think you heard me this morning thanking all those who have helped make this possible and the sort of things that inspired me.

(A Beat.)

SECRETARY (Cont.)

What is important is that, in my judgment, this agreement can and should work. This one was negotiated with the President himself, and the leadership has got the message that he wants cooperation, he wants it done.

We on the United Nations side, as well as United Nations Special Commission (UNSCOM) staff members, also have to handle Russia and Mongolia with a certain respect and dignity and not push our weight around and cause tensions. And I think we need to make other arrangements and take steps to ensure that the relationship can be maintained smoothly. We should have a mechanism for resolving conflicts before they become dilemmas and almost bring us to the verge of war.

The representative from Pakistan raises her hand to be recognized. The secretary points to her.

PAKISTAN REP

Mr. Secretary, what if Russia uses Nuclear weapons?

SECRETARY

They have promised me that they will not use Nuclear Weapons. I think there are lessons in this for everyone. But this could not have happened if all involved -- including the Russian, Chinese and Mongolian leadership had not shown what I asked for, courage, wisdom, flexibility. And I thank all those involved for giving us a chance.

The representative from PAKISTAN raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

PAKISTAN REP

Mr. Secretary, what if Russia invades Mongolia?

SECRETARY

They have no reason to do that. But it is a victory not for me, if we call it victory, but a victory for the United Nations, for this Organization, which sent me there as a servant in the

general popular support for a peaceful solution.

PAKISTAN REP

Mr. Secretary, you have described your talks with the Russians as tough, and the sticking point had been the 90 day cooling off period. At the point that you realized you were going to have a deal, how did you feel at that point? And secondly, you

have established a relationship with the Prime Minister at this point. How would you describe that and the relationship you would like to have with him in the future?

SECRETARY

When I sensed that I would get a deal, I was of course elated and happy for the world and the people in the region.

(A BEAT.)

But, let me say that we did have a good human rapport. He did say several times, I know I can do business with you. I know

you are courageous and I know I can trust you. And his ministers repeated it to us the next morning. I trust that if we really organize in such a way that we can remove the impediments or conflicts as they come up, rather than let them build up, and then you have a storm which almost leads to war, we will be okay in the future.

The representative from ISRAEL raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

ISRAEL

Mr. Secretary, In the absence of a Security Council resolution that would threaten consequences if this agreement were breached, Russia seems ready to make that judgment unilaterally, and commit military action unilaterally, if it feels the agreement is breached. Are you comfortable with that situation, or would you prefer to see the Security Council take that up?

SECRETARY

Let me be clear here. Ladies and gentlemen, I have done my work. I trust the Council will do its duty, and leave unto Caesar what is Caesar's.

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

INT.
LARGE TRUCK - MONGOLIAN SIDE

A man is seen in the bed of a large truck and

off in the distance, one can make out the sound

of Yaks and the herdsmen calling to them.

SUDDENLY, a single match ignites and frames the face of a middle east man with a turban and full beard. It quivers for a moment. A dimly lit hand brings the rest of the pack to the match. A plume of yellow-white flame flares and illuminates the battered face of MOHAMMED MOLJI, age forty. His

face drips with sweat. A large cut runs the

length of his face from the corner of his eye

to the corner of his mouth.

In the half-light we can make out that he's in

the back of a large truck. He sits with his

back against the front bulkhead of the cab.

He looks down. Between his legs is a large

suitcase with Cyrillic writing.

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

A stack of oil drums rests next to a large stone wall. They're stacked next to the wall with ropes at each corner. Two of the barrels have had the cover plates removed. The oil has been drained

and they're now both empty.

He's seen exiting the rear of the truck and grabbing the suitcase and carrying it to where

the empty drum is located.

He carefully places the suitcase inside the 55 gallon drum and replaces the cover securing it

with the cover latching ring.

An unknown man walks up next to him. He pulls a pack of cigarettes out of one pocket and a lighter from the other. The man flicks up the clasp with his thumb and strikes it with his index finger.

MOHAMMED MOLJI looks up at the man. A look of realization crosses his face. It's followed

by frustration, anger, and finally resignation.

VOICE (O.S.)

How are you, MOHAMMED?

MOLJI

Where the hell were you IVAN.

He spits the name out like it was poison.

The man puts the lighter back in his pocket and reaches under his jacket. He produces a small  Russian pistol with a silencer.

IVAN (O.S.)

Ready?

MOLJI

Shit I was ready hours ago.

Why do we need two barrels,

the suitcase fit in one

just fine? What time is it?

The hand with the gun turns over, turning the gold watch on its wrist upward.

IVAN (O.S.)

Midnight.

MOLJI grimaces bitterly and nods. He turns his head away and takes another drag. The hand with the gun waits long enough for MOLJI to enjoy his last drag before pulling the trigger.

GUNSHOT

The sound of MOLJI'S body slumping onto the ground.

A RUSSIAN BORDER PATROL TRUCK COMES INTO VIEW.

He quickly opens the other barrel and picks up the limp body of MOLJI and shoves it into the barrel, replacing the lid with the circular 55 gallon locking ring..

MOVE INTO THE DARKNESS.

Sirens are close now. Almost here. The sound of a border skirmish.

Voices yelling. New light flickering in the surrounding darkness. Ivan removes a small remote detonator from his jacket and flips the power switch on. He cringes when he presses the button.

SUDDENLY, AN EXPLOSION TWO HUNDRED YARDS AWAY.

The diversion then silence. TOTAL BLACKNESS.

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

EXT.
TASHANTA RUSSIA - OUTPOST BUILDING

INT.
TASHANTA OUTPOST OFFICE

Russian COLONEL JOSEF MOZER, a young officer

in his late thirties, tall and lean with a

very short haircut is seen in conversation

with his fellow officer Major JAN DZO a

very large man looking more Mongolian than

Russian.

DZO

Who is IVAN VASILYEVICH?

DZO leans into MOZER'S face. He hangs on his every word.

MOZER

He's supposed to be RUSSIAN. Some say

his MOTHER was MONGOLIAN. Nobody

believed he was real. Nobody ever saw

him or knew anybody that ever worked directly for him.

DZO

(Laughing)

The invisible man?

MOZER

Anybody could have worked for him. There was a rumor he was a direct descendant of the Czar Ivan the terrible. You never knew because that was his power. He realized that to be in power you didn't need guns or money, you just needed the will to do what the other guy wouldn't.

DZO

I have known people like that.

MOZER

He moves to Afghanistan from Russia where he meets a beautiful young lady and marries her. One day during the invasion by the Russians a platoon of Russian soldiers raped his wife, so he vowed to get all of them and he did.

DZO

(Smiling)

Our soldiers didn't kill her, did they?

MOZER

They raped and killed her.

DZO

So, what happened?

MOZER

After he finds and kills all the Russian soldiers who assaulted his wife he systematically goes after the rest of their relatives. He kills their kids,

he kills their wives, he kills their

parents and their parents' friends.

DZO

He must be a Mongolian!

MOZER

He burns down the houses and their

stores and like that he was gone.

No one has ever seen him again and

he became a myth.

DZO

Do you believe that old wives tale?

SUDDENLY, AN EXPLOSION ONE HUNDRED YARDS AWAY.

MOZER

What the hell was that. Get your

men on that right now!

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

EXT.
TASHANTA RUSSIA - ONE MILE FROM BORDER CROSSING

INT.
LARGE TRUCK PARKED ON MONGOLIAN SIDE

IVAN VASILYEVICH, is seen in conversation with his

Friend and terrorist leader OSCAR BEN LADEN, and his military chief MUHAMMAD ATEF both are in their late forties and are wearing a full beard. They're both wanted by INTERPOL for

plotting and carrying out the attacks in NAIROBI, KENYA, AND DAR ES SALAAM, TANZANIA, on August 7, 1998. They are joined by WADIH EL HAGE, FAZUL ABDULLAH MOHAMMED, MOHAMED SADEEK ODEH and MOHAMED RASHED DAOUD AL-'OWHALI.

ATEF is the group's military commander. They have traveled to Mongolia to disrupt the U.N. forces.

BEN Laden and his terrorist group, AL QAEDA, forged alliances with representatives of the government of Iran, the National Islamic Front in the Sudan and an Iranian terrorist group, HEZBALLAH.

BEN Laden and a committee of his terrorist group's members issued FATWAHS or religious edicts urging other members and associates

of the group to kill all Russians.

They're all concentrating on a group of

buildings on the Russian side of the

Russian Mongolian border.

IVAN VASILYEVICH

It's a logistical nightmare, a dozen men, maybe twenty.

BEN LADEN

Can we sniper these guys?

IVAN VASILYEVICH

Doubtful. Maybe one or two.

BEN LADEN

And if we wait for later in the night, will there be less men?

IVAN VASILYEVICH

Ten men at the very least. In my opinion, it can't be done. Anyone who walks into this won't come out alive.

BEN LADEN

I'm for waiting for the ok to use the RUSKI BOMBA.

IVAN VASILYEVICH

Me too.

MUHAMMAD ATEF

(Looking at his men)

Did you hear what he just said?

IVAN VASILYEVICH

If I'm going in, I want a diversion.

BEN LADEN

So do I.

MUHAMMAD ATEF is shocked by what he's hearing. He looks at IVAN VASILYEVICH as if to ask him for his decision.

IVAN VASILYEVICH cold stare is all the answer MUHAMMAD ATEF needs. He slumps in his seat, resigned to the others.

MUHAMMAD ATEF

I just can't believe we're just gonna walk into certain death.

PAUSE

They all suddenly realize the weight of their situation.

A large crane hoists a pallet of fuel drums from the stone wall. It swings slowly over

to the truck. A man near the truck yells in Russian to the crane operator.

Behind an old truck, IVAN VASILYEVICH and MUHAMMAD ATEF watch the crane from the shadows.

MUHAMMAD ATEF

What-are they speaking?

FAZUL ABDULLAH MOHAMMED

Russian, I think, right Ivan?

MUHAMMAD ATEF

Mongolian?

BEN LADEN

Quiet, your making too much noise.

MUHAMMAD ATEF climbing up the side of the truck.

A large helicopter is seen on the Russian side. A very large helicopter, heavily

loaded with ordnance of all kinds.

MUHAMMAD ATEF maneuvers through the rear of the truck bed, arriving at a vantage point near the back of the truck.

MUHAMMAD ATEF

It's a RUSSIAN HINDS ATTACK HELICOPTER and it's fully

loaded with everything.

A black truck pulls up and parks near the HINDS. Four soldiers get out. One remains

with the van and the other three walk

toward the HINDS.

BEN LADEN'S pager goes off with a very low vibrator mode. He reads it smiles and resets it. Ivan V looks at him.

IVAN V

Are we ready?

BEN LADEN

We have a green light.

IVAN V

(Smiling)

Everyone BE VERY QUITE. I'm ready. to set the detonator on the BOMBA. WE NEED TO BE AT LEAST FIVE MILES FROM GROUND ZERO WHEN IT GOES OFF

SO I'LL SET IT FOR 30 MINUTES..

Ivan turns and takes a few steps. He stops and looks back, his face marked with guilt and agony.

IVAN V

I hope someday my people understand.

Ivan leaves before anyone can respond. He walks down to the stack of drums where he left the suitcase.

He's no more than a few yards out of the shadows before the first man sees him.

One of the men starts to yell to the others. Men pull out guns and try to look as cool as they can.

IVAN V walks right into the face of all of these men, undaunted. His hands are in his pockets.

Above him, in the darkness, BEN LADEN pokes his head out and spies IVAN V. He pulls his head back and sticks out the barrel of his sniper rifle.

IVAN V comes to a stop about twenty feet from workmen.

BEN LADEN P.O.V.

He stares through the scope of his   HK G3 Sniper silenced rifle at the scene. The cross-hairs breeze past IVAN V and find a target. A man holding an AK47.

BEN LADEN P.O.V.

(Mock)

BANG.

He moves to another and then another, picking up speed and mock-shooting the men. He is steady and quick. It is clear he could take all of them in a few seconds. The men shout questions at IVAN V in a number of languages.

MUHAMMAD ATEF P.O.V.

Two men standing near the large

crane, move towards the commotion.

IVAN V convinces the men he's one of the workers and walks quickly and quietly through the shadows, bringing him to the nuclear suitcase bomb hidden in the 55 gallon drum.

MUHAMMAD ATEF remains in the darkness.

BEN LADEN still wanders with his scope.

Finally two men walk right towards IVAN V. The rest train guns on him. They reach for his arms, pointing their guns right at him.

At this instant BEN LADEN drops both of them with one shot each.

IVAN V pulls a pistol out of his pocket and shoots the two wounded men in the head.

The crane operator opens the door jumps down and runs into the darkness.

PAUSE

FINALLY, IVAN V gets to the drum with the nuke in it and pulls the cover. He shines a small flashlight and finds the suitcase and pulls it out of the drum. He opens it and shines the light on the detonator sequence control board. He turns on the power and sets the timer for 30 minutes. He pushes the start button and the system comes to life. He closes the suitcase and places it back in the drum. Slams the drum cover and locks it with the circular drum ring. He hurries back to the truck. The truck starts up and it's seen disappearing down the dirt road.

CUT TO:

EXT.
GENEVA SWITZERLAND   DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations is addressing the United nations representatives.

SECRETARY-GENERAL

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I have just finished briefing the Security Council,

And Israel has come up with a genius plan to solve our Russian Mongolian problem. Israeli Prime Minister Benjamin NETANYAHU has convened his Cabinet Thursday to discuss the latest peace accord with the Russians and Mongolians.

The Secretary is handed an envelope marked secret and he glances at it and places it on his podium.

SECRETARY-GENERAL  (Cont.)

NETANYAHU delayed a Cabinet meeting to draft this Memorandum three times in the past week, because of disputes over United nations efforts to resolve the standoff. His office released a statement Wednesday saying that now there is satisfaction in Jerusalem upon completion of the this new Treaty. The statement went on to say that NETANYAHU had received World Wide guarantees to carry out this plan. Now, the Russians will be tested by their deeds in the field, the statement quoted NETANYAHU as saying.

He looks at the envelope again and reaches for it and opens it and removes a memo.

SECRETARY-GENERAL  (Cont.)

Hours earlier, the Russian President announced that his forces had already arrested over 300 border jumpers. The Israeli statement said the United Nations would guarantee peace during the 2-week implementation period.

NETANYAHU'S announcement followed a day of heated accusations and

name-calling over which side was delaying the deal. Chief Russian negotiator called NETANYAHU'S delays a "shameless" attempt to placate the hard-liners opposed to giving up their seven cities. In a rancorous debate seen on Israeli television, Russia called the Israeli CaBENet Secretary the king of lies.

He reads more of the memo.

SECRETARY-GENERAL  (Cont.)

The peace deal, which was hammered out over a nine-day negotiating session in Israel last month, calls for a large contingent of our United Nations representatives to occupy the Seven cities for at least one year until a resolution is approved. The Mongolians have agreed to crack down on all suspected border jumpers.

He finishes reading the memo and has a sick look on his face.

(A beat.)

My dear fellow members, I have just

received a communiqué that tells me

a Nuclear Bomb has exploded on the

Russian Mongolian border.

(A beat.)

GOD HELP US!

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

EXT.
TASHANTA RUSSIA - OUTPOST BUILDING

INT.
TASHANTA OUTPOST OFFICE

COLONEL JOSEF MOZER, is seen in conversation

with his fellow officer Major JAN DZO.

MOZER

So, what was that explosion?

DZO

(Laughing)

I don't know, maybe just a

land mine going off, we

found nothing?

MOZER

Land mine, why would we have

a land mine on our own border,

something is not right.

DZO

You worry too much!

MOZER

There better not be more to this

than what appears, because if it

is, you will go to Siberia for

the rest of your tour!

DZO

(Somber

I will have my men check the border

again sir.

MOZER

Do it now, and check for everything!

DZO

Yes sir!

MOZER

I will call the next watch post

and see if anything funny has

happened down there!

DZO

(Talking on the radio)

Check everything again, and again if necessary!

MOZER gets off the phone and swings around in his chair facing Major DZO.

MOZER

Nothing at the other border

check point.

DZO

Sir, what if they start a nuclear

war over the seven Russian cities?

Will we have any kind of a warning?

MOZER

Terrorists use small nukes

like two kilo tons because

they do a lot of damage while

being easy to conceal and

deliver.

DZO

What about if were close to ground zero?

MOZER

In a military operation you can survive a five kilo ton nuclear

device explosion even if your

close to ground zero, say three

miles. In terrorist operations

where a two kilo ton device is

used, you could survive a similar

blast even if you're just a

mile from ground zero. Just

take cover.

DZO

Of course the farther you are

from ground zero, the better

off you'll be, right?

MOZER

Regardless of the size or source

of a nuclear explosion, the

energy released will be in several forms including visible light, four times as bright as the sun, thermal heat rays, and ionizing radiation in the form of gamma rays, neutrons, Alpha particles, and Beta particles.

DZO

Looks like we all die!

MOZER

The release of energy during the explosion super heats the air around it until it is hotter than the face

of the sun. This air expands violently making a blast wave that races from ground zero at up to 4,000 miles per hour.

DZO

Are you trying to scare me sir?

MOZER

Of course not, we just have to be prepared. The air ahead of the

blast wave is compressed, it bends light and appears slightly luminous and will appear as a sheet of glass moving out from the center of the explosion. The blast sounds like

the gates of Hell clanging shut.

DZO

Yes sir, that's where we will all go to, Hell!

MOZER

As the blast wave storms away from ground zero, the fireball created  rises so quickly that it creates a vacuum under it. The vacuum pulls air back toward ground zero so that the blast wave is followed by a counter wave sucked back toward the area of the explosion to fill the vacuum.

DZO

Anything else?

MOZER

Don't ever look toward a nuclear flash, the intense light will burn  your retinas and blind you.

A BRILLIANT FLASH IS SEEN

The flash blinds MOZER and DZO and they start screaming.

THE BLAST WAVE IS FELT

The blast wave pulverizes the small building.

GLASS AND FLYING DEBRIS

Glass is seen cutting them both to a big gob of flesh and blood.

PLASTER, CHUNKS OF WOOD, METAL, SOIL, ROCKS

A huge piece of wood decapitates DZO. A large rock destroys MOZERS face.

THERMAL RADIATION STARTS

As the thermal radiation comes in what's left of MOZER and DZO begins to melt.

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    NIGHT

EXT.
TASHANTA OUTPOST BUILDING DESTROYED

A HUGE MUSHROOM CLOUD IS SEEN LOADED WITH

SMOKE AND FIRE.

RADIOACTIVE FALLOUT

The radioactive fallout starts to come down.

CONTAMINATION SPREAD OVER A HUGE AREA

Russian troops are seen on fire, running in different directions.

QUITE

THE MUSHROOM CLOUD HAS NOW GONE TO 30 THOUSAND

FEET WHERE IT WILL PEAK AND START TO RAIN RADIOACTIVE ANYTHING.

CUT TO:

EXT.
GENEVA SWITZERLAND   DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations

has called an emergency meeting and is

addressing the United nations

representatives.

SECRETARY-GENERAL

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I have just finished briefing the Security Council,

And we have NUCLEAR SCIENTIST

JOE BALI of India will tell us

a little about what happened

in TASHANTA RUSSIA.

JOE BALI STEPS UP TO THE PODIUM holding papers in his hand and starts to speak.

The splitting of the atom has changed everything save our mode of thinking and thus we drift toward catastrophe, said Albert Einstein. Good afternoon my friends. When a nuclear weapon explodes, in about a millionth of a second a temperature of up to eighteen million degrees Fahrenheit, comparable

to that inside the sun, is produced. About half of this is immediately lost in the close vicinity of the explosion as a luminous white fireball appears, expands and begins to rise. For up to a minute, energy in the forms of radiation, electromagnetic pulse, light, heat, sound, and blast is released in all directions. The fireball then ceases to be luminous and begins to cool as its cloud rises many thousands of meters at up to 480 kilometers per hour. As the cloud billows out into its eventual mushroom shape it sucks up after it a column of dust from the earth's surface. This dust mixes with residue of the weapon and becomes radioactive fallout.

The hand goes up from the Iceland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

ICLAND REP

Dr. Bali, how many people are dead?

DR. BALI

Initially we have about two hundred people, but believe the number will be higher.

ICELAND REP

Thank you Dr. Bali.

DR. BALI

There is ultraviolet and infrared, light more intense than it appears

to be, and liable to cause blindness, even though sight may return within

a few days. One third of the energy of a nuclear weapon is emitted in this form. It radiates in straight lines at the velocity of light, but has little penetrating power and is weakened by haze or mist. Its range, however, is greater than that of blast or of initial radiation, and it may cause injury or death to those exposed and damage to property by starting fires.

The hand goes up from the Greenland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

GREENLAND REP

Dr. Bali, will the radioactive cloud reach as far as Greenland?

DR. BALI

No, it will not go any farther than ten to twenty miles from ground zero.

Remember, this was a suitcase bomb of one to two megatons. Very small.

GREENLAND REP

Thank you Dr. Bali.

DR. BALI

The blast a wave of compressed air moves away from the site of a nuclear explosion at about the speed of sound. Lasting several seconds, it maintains pressure upon objects in its path in a manner more usually associated with a very high wind than the shock wave of an explosion.

The hand goes up from the Iceland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

ICLAND REP

Dr. Bali, how about EMP?

DR. BALI

The Electro-magnetic Pulse is very localized. The effects of EMP diminish sharply with distance from the point of detonation but can still cause damage at ranges greater than 5 miles.

As you know this is a byproduct of the immediate energy release from a detonated nuclear device which, has the effect of altering the electrical properties of electrons in the nearby atmosphere communications. Anymore questions?

SECRETARY GENERAL

Thank YOU Dr. BALI.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is still one of grave concern over

the nuclear bomb set off at a border check-point. More than a dozen elder statesmen are seen sitting around a large conference table. The Secretary General ERIK KOLSKI is speaking on the phone. He finishes and looks at the Security Council.

KOLSKI

(Pissed)

I was just told the nuclear device was one of ours?

The men in the group look at each other.

CLOSE ON BALD MAN SITTING NEXT TO KOLSKI.

The financial minister OLAF BERIA speaks to the group.

BERIA

I have no record of any of our

BOMBAS being sold to anyone.

ANTON KHAN the Minister of Defense looks at the council.

KOLSKI

Your saying it was one of ours

and it was stolen from our

arsenal?

KHAN

We have an Afghanistan terrorist

who has admitted to buying the

BOMBA from on of our officers!

KOLSKI

What is this officers name?

KHAN

CAPTAIN MACHAIL VLENZ said he sold it to COLONEL JOSEF MOZER to buy food for his family and he sold it to the Afghanistan.

KOLSKI

And where is MOZER?

KHAN

He was one of the fatalities at

TASHANTA!

CUT TO:

EXT.
GENEVA SWITZERLAND   DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations

has called an emergency meeting and is

addressing the United nations

representatives.

SECRETARY-GENERAL

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I have just finished briefing the Security Council,

And we have NUCLEAR SCIENTIST

JOE BALI of India will tell us

a little about what happened

in TASHANTA RUSSIA.

JOE BALI STEPS UP TO THE PODIUM holding papers in his hand and starts to speak.

The splitting of the atom has changed everything save our mode of thinking and thus we drift toward catastrophe, said Albert Einstein. Good afternoon my friends. When a nuclear weapon explodes, in about a millionth of a second a temperature of up to eighteen million degrees Fahrenheit, comparable

to that inside the sun, is produced. About half of this is immediately lost in the close vicinity of the explosion as a luminous white fireball appears, expands and begins to rise. For up to a minute, energy in the forms of radiation, electromagnetic pulse, light, heat, sound, and blast is released in all directions. The fireball then ceases to be luminous and begins to cool as its cloud rises many thousands of meters at up to 480 kilometers per hour. As the cloud billows out into its eventual mushroom shape it sucks up after it a column of dust from the earth's surface. This dust mixes with residue of the weapon and becomes radioactive fallout.

The hand goes up from the Iceland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

ICLAND REP

Dr. Bali, how many people are dead?

DR. BALI

Initially we have about two hundred people, but believe the number will be higher.

ICELAND REP

Thank you Dr. Bali.

DR. BALI

There is ultraviolet and infrared, light more intense than it appears

to be, and liable to cause blindness, even though sight may return within

a few days. One third of the energy of a nuclear weapon is emitted in this form. It radiates in straight lines at the velocity of light, but has little penetrating power and is weakened by haze or mist. Its range, however, is greater than that of blast or of initial radiation, and it may cause injury or death to those exposed and damage to property by starting fires.

The hand goes up from the Greenland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

GREENLAND REP

Dr. Bali, will the radioactive cloud reach as far as Greenland?

DR. BALI

No, it will not go any farther than ten to twenty miles from ground zero.

Remember, this was a suitcase bomb of one to two megatons. Very small.

GREENLAND REP

Thank you Dr. Bali.

DR. BALI

The blast a wave of compressed air moves away from the site of a nuclear explosion at about the speed of sound. Lasting several seconds, it maintains pressure upon objects in its path in a manner more usually associated with a very high wind than the shock wave of an explosion.

The hand goes up from the Iceland representative and Dr. Bali sees him and recognizes him.

ICLAND REP

Dr. Bali, how about EMP?

DR. BALI

The Electro-magnetic Pulse is very localized. The effects of EMP diminish sharply with distance from the point of detonation but can still cause damage at ranges greater than 5 miles.

As you know this is a byproduct of the immediate energy release from a detonated nuclear device which, has the effect of altering the electrical properties of electrons in the nearby atmosphere communications.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is one of grave concern over the

Nuclear bomb set off near TASHANTA.

GREGORI

Who else knows this was our suitcase bomb?

KHAN

Only us sir. Why?

GREGORI

Ok, we tell nobody and make it look like the Mongolians or the Chinese set it off, that will give us a good excuse to go into Mongolia and kick some ass, ok?

KHAN

Ok, how soon do you want us to start the offensive?

GREGORI

Now! I want you to mass troops at all the border check-points for the remaining six cities. Use what ever you want, but don't use any nuclear, unless you hear from me first.

Khan

Yes sir, I will get right on it!

CUT TO:

EXT.
RUSSIAN MONGOLIAN BORDER    DAY

EXT.
ULANGAM MONGOLIA

A vast field of devastation smashed and smoking trees deep, ragged craters gutted and burning huts shattered Trucks and bodies laying everywhere.

Overhead MIG-29'S swoop by FIRING ROCKETS.

FULL SHOT - HELICOPTERS

Three HINDS swoop in low, they are heavily laden with machine guns and rockets. The two out side choppers hover, while the center one lands, raising a lot of dust. It cuts its rotors and the other choppers pull up and off to the side. Two armed soldiers jump from the doors and stand with guns ready.

FULL VIEW

Helicopter rotors build up speed, gas turbines

belching fire from their jet pipes, dust flying as the helicopter rises ROAR OVER CAMERA and deploy into attack formation.

NEW VIEW

Helicopters moving THROUGH the FRAME

Below we see the mountains whisk by and they are

low and fast.

CLOSE SHOTS of rocket pods and mini-guns in bizarre looking mounts.

The helicopter banks into a tight turn and bears

toward the mountains.

FULL SHOT - HELICOPTERS

From the rear we see the massive grouping of HINDS gun ships and troop carriers, ROAR over low in battle formation.

INT. HELICOPTER - MED. SHOT -CREW

POV behind pilot --

PILOT

700 -- 600 yards -- 500 --

Commence firing.

The whole chopper shakes.

EXT. MONGOLIAN VILLAGE - FULL SHOT

A Mongolian village built along the valley and mountains, with herds of Yaks behind. This village commands a delta where valley and river merge.

Old horse drawn carts are pulled into a cover where they are being unloaded.

Camouflage is removed from ancient anti-aircraft emplacements. People feverishly unlimber weapons of all types and run to tunnels and trenches.

EXT. THE HELICOPTER FORMATION - AERIAL VIEW

HIGH ANGLE

looking down through the helicopters as they approach the village.

INT. HELICOPTER - MED. SHOT - CREW

POV behind pilot

PILOT

500 yards -- 400 -- 300 --

commence firing.

The whole chopper shakes.

EXT. HELICOPTERS

We see rockets roar from pods, machine guns rattle, grenade launchers pound away and

MINI-GUNS pour streams of lead and tracers

with the sound of a locomotive.

FULL SHOT - HELICOPTERS

POV behind lead gun-ship. They roar in over the mountain peaks streaming fire from doors, pods and nose the ground is alive with smoke and fire a hut explodes. The lead ship banks sharply up over the trees men run below shooting back.

MED. SHOT - ANTI-AIRCRAFT EMPLACEMENT

Explosions crash around and the sound of the choppers almost drown them out. The gunner

fires frantically choppers are roaring

over gunfire rips around. The gunner is

blown away. The lead ship swoops down, its machine guns firing into the village.

MED. SHOT - SWOOPING CHOPPER

BULLETS RIP through the PLEXIGLASS. The Pilot FIRES back.

FULL SHOT - MIG-29 JET SQUADRON

Four MIG-29'S peel off and streak toward the BATTLEGROUND.

HELICOPTER'S POV - THE JETS

The jets streak by below laying in huge gobs of orange napalm along the trees.

INT. COMMAND HELICOPTER - MED. SHOT

They circle the battle.

The gunner FIRES leaning out --

He leans back in.

Suddenly, BULLETS SMASH through the CHOPPER, PLEXIGLASS SHATTERS, the CHOPPER vibrates and turns sharply.

Automatic weapons flashes along the trees, probably eleven millimeter guns and AK-47's.

FULL SHOT - THE TREES, HELICOPTERS

The three helicopters swoop up out of the smoke and blast the trees with ROCKETS, MACHINE GUNS and GRENADE LAUNCHERS.

Other choppers join in and members of the Mongolian home guards are seen running through the rice paddies in the foreground, bullets exploding around them they scream and fall firing back.

INT. COMMAND COPTER - MED. SHOT

The gunner looks out as three Mongolian home guard break and run through the rice paddies, the helicopter turns and follows them, the

door gunner swings out and blasts two of them into the mud. He takes a bead on the third.

One of the officers puts his arms across the sights the gunner swings back inside. They rise above the paddy the man below runs for all he's worth. The officer motions to the door gunner who steps aside. He buckles himself into the gunner's harness. A hand passes him an AK-47

with a 75 round drum. He locks and loads

MOVING POV. ON THE MONGOLIAN.

He's running hard, but starting to sink into

the mud. The chopper drones overhead, its

huge shadow behind him on the mud. He turns

and fires in full automatic mode, and the

Mongolian is BLASTED flat into the paddy.

CUT TO:

FULL SHOT - BATTLEFIELD

Russians run through the HOOCHES FIRING and throwing GRENADES. Helicopters swoop overhead -- JETS ROAR by Mongolians burst from a tunnel entrance and charge the Russians. The SHOOTING is at point blank range, automatic, as the Mongolians are cut down.

FULL SHOT - HUTS, SOLDIERS

Russians line up Mongolian troops outside a burning hut. Gunfire is distant and sporadic,

an occasional mortar round screams in. A

soldier yells in Russian and the prisoners

are lined up and shot. Other soldiers are already setting up heavy weapons emplacements. Three HINDS roar in, fanning the smoke with their wind. The center one, the command ship, lands. Jets scream over and the two gun-ships pull up at 500 feet. Another HINDS zooms in

low and lands.

A SERIES of SHELLS ROAR in.

FULL SHOT - MIG-29's

MIG-29's rake the trees with 20 mm CANNONS, FIRE five inch rockets in salvo, Cluster Bomb Units and finally an immense amount of NAPALM.

TWO HELICOPTERS SCREAM OVER FIRING ROCKETS.

SHELLS SCREAM over, but even their noise is drowned out by the fierce shriek of the MIG-29'S and the deafening blast of high explosives.

The MIG-29'S are making hell of the tree line,

a hell of fire and bustling steam that nothing could live in.

CUT TO:

EXT.
GENEVA SWITZERLAND   DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations is addressing the United nations representatives

in an emergency session.

SECRETARY-GENERAL

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

I have just finished briefing the Security Council, and am pleased to tell you that I had a general sense

of approval from the membership as to the agreement that I signed in Moscow today. Obviously, there are details that will have to be worked out and explanations that must be given, but none of it gives me and my staff any problems. The Russians, Mongolians

and Chinese have signed a four point treaty that starts today at noon.

One, the United Nations will staff

all the seven cities and border crossings with full time UN Staff.  Two, the three divisions Russia assigned to the border skirmishes

will fall back to their bases of origin. Three, the Mongolian regular troops will return to their troop quarters. And, four, there will be a 180 day cooling off period so we can settle this problem once and for all.

The entire assembly stands and applauds the Secretary General.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is still one of grave concern over

the nuclear bomb set off at a border check-point. More than a dozen elder statesmen are seen sitting around a large conference table. The Secretary General ERIK KOLSKI is speaking to his Security Council.

KOLSKI

(Pissed)

I was under a lot of pressure to sign the 90 day agreement with the United Nations?

The men in the group look at each other.

CLOSE ON MAN SITTING NEXT TO KOLSKI.

ANTON KHAN the Minister of Defense looks at the council.

KOLSKI

What was the body count for

the week that we taught the

Mongols a lesson?

KHAN

We have an estimate of at least 2000 Mongolian Troops and some of their Chinese advisors.

KOLSKI

Excellent? Now here is the next step. I want you to find the Afghanistan terrorists who did this to us and I want their heads on a platter!

KHAN

Yes sir. The Afghanistan terrorist

who has admitted to buying the

BOMBA from on of our officers has

decided to tell us everything and

he has given us a list of the perpetrators.

KOLSKI

Excellent, excellent!

KHAN

The leader is a Saudi National!

MUJAHADEEN FIGHTERS have already given us enough problems in our

ten-year-long war in Afghanistan.

We hear they are in with the

HEZBOLLAH and its patron Iran

CUT TO:

An aide walks into the room and hands KOLSKI

a memo. KOLSKI reads the memo and waves off

the aide, who leaves the room. He reaches

for the TV remote. Points it at the large

wall TV and it comes to life. A well groomed

and well dressed senior newscaster comes into

view.

KOLSKI

My aide has informed me that a US

program on CNN is starting covering

world problems.

NEWSCASTER

(Coming into view)

Until last week, Afghanistan had almost

Disappeared from the world's radar screen. But on Thursday, after 50 U.S. cruise missiles impacted on its soil, this

strategic Asian nation made headlines

around the world.

(A beat.)

What is Afghanistan?

Afghanistan is a large nation situated between the Indian subcontinent, the

Middle East, and Central Asia. Although

it has no access to the sea, its

location is strategic due to the borders

it shares with major powers like China, Iran, Pakistan, and the former Soviet republics of TURKMENISTAN, UZBEKISTAN,

AND TAJIKISTAN.

An Asian map comes on the screen showing the strategic location of Afghanistan.

NEWSCASTER

There has never been a census in Afghanistan, population data is imprecise. Most observers estimate the population to be 90% rural. Ethnically, Afghanistan is apatchwork of various tribal units. A mosaic of languages, customs, and communities have

been left by people who, over thousands of years, roamed Inner Asia.

A picture of a tribesman comes into view carrying a rocket launcher.

NEWSCASTER

The two largest ethnic populations

are the PASHTANS and the TAJIK.

The PASHTANS are organized tribally

and are concentrated in the east

and the south. The TAJIK speak

Persian and are identified with

farming and town life. Afghanistan

also includes a number of smaller populations such as the UZBEK AND

TURKMEN, the Mongoloid HAZARA,

and various mountain and desert

communities.

A picture of a tribesman comes into VIEW herding

Yaks.

One uniting factor in Afghanistan's

ethnic tapestry is Islam. Virtually

all citizens are Muslim. Most people

think of the former Soviet Union

when they think of Afghanistan.

Indeed, the Soviets spent most of

the 1980's engaged in an unpopular

war in Afghanistan, and many

observers link the collapse of the

USSR to that bloody and costly

campaign. The Soviets intervened

militarily in Afghanistan in December

1979 following the removal from

power of NUR MOHAMMED TURKI. TURKI

was the leader of the People's

Democratic Party of Afghanistan,

he rose to power during a Marxist

coup in April 1978.

A picture of NUR MOHAMMED TURKI comes into view

loaded with medals.

NEWSCASTER

Following the Soviet intervention,

a national resistance movement

spread throughout the country. A

group of ill equipped soldiers

known as the MUJAHADEEN Islamic

Warriors in Arabic, slowly gained

control of most of Afghanistan's

countryside with the backing of

the United States, Pakistan, and

Saudi Arabia.

(A beat.)

NEWSCASTER

In 1986, the Soviet Union agreed

to withdraw from Afghanistan,

the withdrawal was completed in

February 1989. The man who the

Soviets left to rule, NAJIBULLAH,

the former head of the Afghan

secret police, battled the

MUJAHADEEN for control of the

country until April 1992, when

the capital city Kabul was

occupied by the MUJAHADEEN. Soon,

an Islamic state was formed.

A tape of the heavy fighting is shown.

NEWSCASTER

But the violence did not end, it

escalated. Power struggles within

the MUJAHADEEN literally leveled

Kabul between 1992 and 1995.

Buildings and homes were decimated

as warlords of various factions

struggled for control of the country.

25,000 Afghans, including 15,000

civilians, were killed during that

period.

Pictures of hundreds of casualties are shown.

NEWSCASTER

During the USSR's occupation, over

1 million refugees lived in Kabul.

Since that time, hundreds of

thousands of Afghans had fled the

capital to become internal refugees.

The violence has prompted the United

Nations and other relief organizations

to suspend most humanitarian efforts

in Kabul. We have been told by an undisclosed source in KABUL that the

infamous BEN LADEN the International terrorist and his MUJAHADEEN freedom fighters live somewhere in the remote mountains near KABUL.

KOLSKI turns off the TV and throws the remote

in the trash can. He's loosing control.

KOLSKI

Will someone please rid me of this

Arab once and for all!

KHAN

Mr. Secretary, we have people in the

field who are in his back yard as

we speak!

FADE IN

EXT.
KABUL AFGHANISTAN -  DAY

EXT.
AFGHANISTAN MOUNTAINS

EXT.
DESERTED MUSLIM TEMPLE

BEN LADEN is seen next to a small fire where

he's surrounded by his MUJAHADEEN chiefs.

AFGHANISTAN MUJAHADEEN CAMP

Hundreds of MUJAHADEEN dressed in the most ornate

and primitive manner, all in body and face paint

of the most savage nature.

The fortified encampment, built around the ruins

of a temple and an ancient AFGHANISTAN civilization. Stone walls, barbed wire, and rows and rows of sandbags arranged in an endless maze around the fortress.

A thick greasy smoke hangs from fires that burn

near the fort, fresh shell craters indicate a

recent battle. Ivan V walks up to the men and

asks for directions.

Men in small groups, huddle over food.

MOVING VIEW - IVAN V AND THE TRIBESMAN

As they proceed closer to the fortress-temple, men appear where a moment before there were only TREES.

They are mostly TRIBESMAN, wearing bandoleers of ammunition and their bodies are painted in strange patterns. They carry Russian AK-47's and a wide variety of knives and clubs.

WE CONTINUE TO MOVE ACROSS

More TRIBESMAN are seen silhouetted against the

sky. IVAN V looks up at people more primitive

and more savage than anything he's ever seen.

They encounter, in the center of the group, a TRIBESMAN, his face is darkened from dirt,

battle smoke, strange camouflage patterns.

His hair and beard are long, matted with

mud and grease carrying an AK-47. IVAN V

approaches him, who seems shy and retiring.

IVAN V

Who are you?

TRIBESMAN ONE

(breaking in)

His name is DAKAROV, he's RUSSIAN.

IVAN V

He can speak for himself.

Tribesman one shuts up. DAKAROV tries to speak,

but nothing comes out. He's shocked at seeing

him, as Ivan V stares at him.

DAKAROV

MAJOR MAXMILLIAN DAKAROV, RED ARMY

deserter.

IVAN V

What happened?

DAKAROV

I was taken in by these kind

people. (A Beat.) So you are

the famous IVAN V. Everyone

thinks you are a myth!

IVAN V

That's the way I want to keep it.

I need to see Laden, will you

take me to him?

DAKAROV

I'm his technical advisor for

Russian war-fare. Please,

follow me.

DAKAROV starts, and then, Suddenly, frightened,

he stops. Without looking IVAN V knows that

BEN LADEN is standing behind him. He turns.

BEN LADEN has stepped out from his headquarters.

He slowly attempts to pull the remnants of his

uniform together, though it's ripped and bloodied,

and now combined with many primitive ornaments designating him a tribal chief, as well as his

SAUDI Colonel's insignia.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

This is not what he expected. He's quiet, and then,

automatically, he comes to attention.

IVAN V

BEN Laden, you looked better the

last time I saw you, what happened.

BEN LADEN

How are you my friend.

IVAN V

You look tired.

CLOSE ON BEN LADEN

Looking at him a long time. Then he speaks.

BEN LADEN

Please sit down.

There is, of course, no chair or anything like a chair. But behind and around him, BEN LADEN'S men begin to sit on the ground, cross-legged. Finally, IVAN V sits as well.

BEN LADEN

(slowly)

Why did you come to my province.

IVAN V

The Russians have set a price

on our heads.

BEN LADEN

(Laughing and coughing)

You came all the way here just

to tell me that. I thought you

came here on a purely social

visit!

IVAN V

Five million for you and four

million for me.

BEN LADEN

(Still laughing and coughing)

The Russians disappoint me.

(pause)

I thought I was worth at least

ten million?

IVAN V

(Smiling)

What do you mean?

BEN LADEN

(gently)

We are both legends and legends

are always worth more?

IVAN V

(Still smiling)

You know you're right.

BEN LADEN

Think about it, isn't it better to

die by firing squad then by

Cancer, stroke or heart attack?

CLOSE ON IVAN V

He remains silent.

CLOSE ON BEN LADEN

He smiles.

BEN LADEN

The way you handled the suitcase

nuclear bomb, was beautiful. I

nor any of my men would know how

to set up the device.

(A beat.)

But you know what my friend,

my reason for the nuclear

was payback for the thousands

of my people that were killed

by the Russians in the

Afghanistan/Russian war, what

was your reason?

There is a long pause, as the two men regard each other. Then IVAN V reaches to his holstered

pistol, withdraws it, and places it on the dirt

before BEN LADEN, as an act assuring him that he

is not an assassin.

IVAN V

You are like a brother to me

and I'm worried about you?

BEN LADEN reaches down takes the pistol and without another word or gesture, shoots and kills MAJOR MAXMILLIAN DAKAROV, RED ARMY deserter and spy.

BEN LADEN

He was spying on me and reporting

back to Russia?

He throws the pistol back on the dirt. Rises, and walks back into the cavernous headquarters. Even

IVAN V is stunned.

IVAN V

Holy shit.

EXT. BEN LADEN'S OUTPOST - FULL VIEW - TWILIGHT

WE ARE TRACKING with them as they move past the groups

of people, huddled by their fires... men, women and

children.

INT. BEN LADEN HEADQUARTERS - NIGHT

IVAN V'S VIEW

A stone floor room in the temple is BEN LADEN'S

headquarters.

IVAN V

What do we do?

BEN LADEN

We'll exterminate the FUCKERS!

Mortars WHISTLE in and EXPLODE on the walls in the compound. The men behind them are setting up rocket launchers.

BEN LADEN looks through the infra-red sniper scope.

IVAN V - INFRA-RED POV

Strange, luminescent images of mercenaries approach

the outer perimeters.

CLOSE ON BEN LADEN

BEN LADEN

Mini-gun. Mini-gun.

A MUJAHADEEN operates the mini-gun with several of

his helpers. When they FIRE the SOUND is incredibly loud and steady like a high-pitched foghorn. A solid stream of FIRE pours into the darkness at 6000 rounds per minute.

CLOSE ON BEN LADEN

BEN LADEN

CLAYMORES, CLAYMORES MINES.

The SOUND of tremendous EXPLOSIONS one after another.

MERCENARY CHARGE

Through SABRE WIRE they chant to themselves as they advance. They have reached the walls and throw down scaling ladders and start up. Suddenly the sky is bright with flares.

The MUJAHADEEN'S stand up screaming as they charge

the Mercenaries. AK-47'S in both hands, blasting, kicking, bayoneting, gouging, splitting throats

both sides collide in their own personal war.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

Standing on the wall BLASTING AWAY as bodies fall around him, he thrusts his bayonet into one

attacker, removes it with a foot and stabs

another. From him he takes his AK47 and BLASTS

more as they come.

The mercenaries rush his position. BEN LADEN trips

a CLAYMORE MINE that BLASTS most of them to shreds.

IVAN V opens up FULL AUTOMATIC and moves down to

the nest wall, FIRING bodies tumbling over.

He turns and runs back through the compound with

the receding MUJAHADEEN. SHELLS are EXPLODING everywhere. Men fall over the walls and charge.

They crouch and rip into them FULL AUTO. They

break the charge and continue cutting their way through the masses.

COMMAND POST - BEN LADEN

BEN LADEN watches as invaders swarm through his domain, He flicks some switches and the whole

north wall EXPLODES in overwhelming FIRE crushing

men below.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

Watching this spectacle.

CLOSE ON BEN LADEN

He rounds the shadow wall.

He sees a group of mercenaries and rushes up and prepares a machine gun mount. They don't see him.

He braces the gun at his side and steps out.

BEN LADEN

(yelling)

Victory!

They stagger and fall, shattered and bleeding. BEN LADEN looks at him, his gun empty. He drops it and flips open the flap of his holster. The mercenary goes for his pistol. BEN LADEN beats him to the draw and blows him into the night. He moves over to pick up the M60 light machine gun. Holding it at his hip, he stands atop one of the ruined walls and FIRES into the masses. His native men see him and rush for the chance to die beside him. They're quickly encircled by onrushing mercenaries and are being overrun. The machine gun jams and BEN LADEN grabs an AK47.

The wall BEN LADEN was standing on comes down,

and he falls with it.

IVAN V sees this and makes his way toward him as the

air strike continues. All around us is a spectacle of

MUSIC and light and fire and overwhelming color.

TRACKING SHOT ON IVAN V

IVAN V

I'm taking you back.

BEN LADEN

I had plans.

IVAN V

I'm gonna get you out of here.

BEN LADEN

I was on threshold of great

things.

IVAN V slings BEN LADEN'S bleeding body around his neck, holding his hand, dragging him through the

smoke and rubble. The spectacle continues in the background.

CUT TO

EXT. THE TEMPLE - MORNING

The entire temple is devastation. Vultures by the hundreds circle overhead. There are a few survivors. Everywhere is smoke and heaps of bodies.

BEN LADEN lies feverish, delirious. IVAN V sits by him. MUJAHADEEN'S those left alive, come and pay

their respects TO THEIR LEADER.

BEN LADEN looks up to him, then an expression of overwhelming intense and hopeless fear.

TRIBESMAN ONE

BEN LADEN, is dead?

IVAN V

Yes I know.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is one of great rejoicing as the

leaders of the government are celebrating

the death of Ben Laden the Terrorist who set

off the Nuclear weapon on the Russian/Mongolian

border. More than a dozen elder statesmen are

seen sitting around a large conference table

drinking Vodka. The Secretary General ERIK

KOLSKI is speaking to his Security Council.

KOLSKI

(Elated)

Now that we have eliminated the Arab Pig, what we want to do is go back to court and demand the

7 billion the Mongolians owe us. They defaulted on that loan 18 months ago so now it's payback time.

The men in the group look at each other.

CLOSE ON MAN SITTING NEXT TO KOLSKI.

ANTON KHAN the Minister of Defense looks at the council.

KHAN

If they don't pay, what are

we going to do, re-posses

the seven cities?

The entire assembly roars in laughter, KHAN looks proud of himself for being so clever.

KHAN

I have at least 600,000 troops

that I could send into Mongolia and take the whole country!

KOLSKI

Excellent idea Anton. Now here is the next step. I want all of you

to get together with ROMANOV and tell him to file the papers demanding our money or we will

take their entire country!

KHAN

Yes sir.

KOLSKI

Excellent, excellent! By the way tell ROMANOV to file the papers in HELSINKI FINLAND, I don't trust the SWEDES.

KHAN

What do you want to do about IVAN

V?

KOLSKI

Raise the bounty from 4 to 10 million

dead or alive!

CUT TO:

EXT.
KABUL AFGHANISTAN -  DAY

EXT.
AFGHANISTAN MOUNTAINS

EXT.
DESERTED MUSLIM TEMPLE

IVAN V is seen next to a small fire where

he's surrounded by MUJAHADEEN. MUHAMMAD ATEF WADIH EL HAGE, FAZUL ABDULLAH MOHAMMED, MOHAMED SADEEK ODEH and MOHAMED RASHED DAOUD AL-'OWHALI.

AFGHANISTAN MUJAHADEEN CAMP

Dozens of MUJAHADEEN are seen guarding the Temple.

IVAN V

So you want me to be your leader?

Why?

MUHAMMAD ATEF the military Leader of the tribesmen wants IVAN V to stay.

MUHAMMAD ATEF

Ivan, stay and lead us. I understand they have raised the price on your head to 10 million. We are moving

to caves deep in the remote mountain, you will be safe their with us.

IVAN V

Thank you for the invitation but I have had an offer from SADDAM. He has a special job for me to do.

WADIH EL HAGE

What more nuclear weapons to clear out all the infidels?

IVAN V

Maybe, maybe not!

FAZUL ABDULLAH MOHAMMED

If you need help call us

MUHAMMAD ATEF

Remember my friend you will always have a home with us.

IVAN V

If you need me in the future please let me know.

IVAN V climbs in his jeep starts it up and is seen going down the dirt trail.

CUT TO:

EXT.
HELSINKI FINLAND     DAY

EXT.
UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE

INT.
CONFERENCE HALL

The secretary General of the United Nations is addressing the United nations representatives.

SECRETARY-GENERAL

Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I have just finished briefing the Security Council,

and unfortunately I have some bad news. The Russians are calling in their notes on the Mongolians. The notes amounting to over 7 billion including interest. The Mongolians have not made a payment in 18  months. Moscow has given them thirty days for the entire 7 billion to be paid or they are taking Mongolia. Obviously, if this happens the Chinese will help the Mongolians and thus World War III. I contacted the World Bank and they are not able to fund this amount.

The representative from Finland raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

FINLAND REP

Mr. Secretary, why are the  Russians doing this, because of the seven cities?

SECRETARY

They have agreed to hold any military action against China and Mongolia until the cooling off period ends in 30 days. But yes I'm sure they are fighting fire with fire.

FINLAND REP

Thank you.

SECRETARY

I think you heard me this morning thanking all those who have helped make this possible and the sort of things that inspired me.

(A Beat.)

SECRETARY (Cont.)

What is important is that, in my judgment, if we can come up with an agreement between the Russians and the Mongolians where they will forgive the loans like they offered to before, we may just avert World War III. We on the United Nations side, as well as United Nations Special Commission (UNSCOM) staff members, also have to handle Russia and Mongolia with a certain respect and dignity and not push our weight around and cause tensions. And I think we need to make other arrangements and take steps to ensure that the relationship can be maintained smoothly. We should have a mechanism for resolving conflicts before they become dilemmas and almost bring us to the verge of war.

The representative from Swedish raises her hand to be recognized. The secretary points to her.

SWEDISH REP

Mr. Secretary, what if Russia declines your request?

SECRETARY

I think I can talk them into it.

The representative from Norway raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

NORWEGIAN REP

Mr. Secretary, what if Russia invades Mongolia then China?

SECRETARY

I believe the Russians want a peaceful solution, and I believe that even in a confrontation

it will never come to war.

Nobody wants war. United

Nations, will send me there as

a servant in the general popular support for a peaceful solution.

NORWEGIAN REP

Mr. Secretary, how soon do you expect an answer from them Russians. And secondly, you

have established a relationship with the Prime Minister at this point will this help?

SECRETARY

Yes, of course it will help. He knows he can trust me, trust is everything. But, let me say that we do have a good rapport. He

did say several times, I know I can do business with you. I know you are courageous and I know I can trust you. And his ministers repeated it to us the next morning.

The representative from ISRAEL raises his hand to be recognized. The secretary points to him.

ISRAEL REP

Russia seems ready commit military action unilaterally,

if it feels the agreement is breached. Are you comfortable with that situation, or would

you prefer to see the Security Council take that up?

SECRETARY

Let me be clear here. Ladies and gentlemen, I have done my work. I trust the Council will do its duty, I TRUST THEM.

CUT TO:

EXT.
FORMER SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

EXT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME - HEAVY RAIN

INT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME VIP OBSERVATION ROOM

The Russian Space representatives are all waiting

for the first launch by a RUSSIAN PROTON BOOSTER ROCKET to place in orbit the first components for

the INTERNATIONAL SPACE STATION ALPHA. Launch

Director ANATOLI SOLONITSYN, a man in his middle fifties. Payload Director IVAN LAPIKOV a young

man in his late thirties. Security Director Colonel NIKOLAI GRINKO a man in his late forties and MAJOR NIKOLAI SERGEYEV Moscow Investigative Services a

young man in his late twenties. They have just switched on the morning news from the Russian

News agency TASS.

NEWSCASTER

Russian engineers, using huge mechanical calipers, hauled

long delayed first module of

the International Space Station

ALPHA to the launch pad in

KAZAKHSTAN in preparation for

today's takeoff. Rain is

hampering the count down and

they're holding at launch

minus two hours.

A close up of the rocket booster is shown.

NEWSCASTER  (Cont.)

The ZARYA cargo module has been

loaded with equipment, disinfected,

tested for air-tightness and filled with 4.5 metric tons of fuel. The ZARYA, a U.S. component built in

Russia, will be the heart of the station during the early stages of construction, providing propulsion

and energy.

The Russian Proton booster rocket is shown from a distance with the Oxygen venting, billowing from each side into the cold morning air.

NEWSCASTER  (Cont.)

The unmanned launch is a first step toward assembling in space the

International Space Station ALPHA, a

project that brings together Russia, the United States, Canada, Japan

and Europe in a $60 billion effort

to build the largest spacecraft ever put into orbit.

A video of a Space Station simulation is shown with tags indicating what country paid for what module.

NEWSCASTER  (Cont.)

The project has suffered periodic delays because Russia's cash

shortages have prevented it from meeting production deadlines.

The ZARYA will be put into orbit

about 160 kilometers above Earth

by the Russian Proton booster

rocket. From there, ZARYA

will be propelled to a higher

orbit by its own engines, which

are to be controlled from the

ground.

A video of the ZARYA space vehicle in simulation is shown.

NEWSCASTER  (Cont.)

During the next three days, engineers at the BAIKONUR COSMODROME, at the former Soviet republic of Kazakhstan, will connect all the necessary cables between ZARYA and the Proton booster.

An international commission of experts today ensured the module is ready for the launch, set for this morning.

We will now break for a commercial.

Launch Director ANATOLI SOLONITSYN mutes the TV and turns to his support group.

SOLONITSYN

(Pissed)

I was just handed a memo saying

IVAN V was seen near the COSMODROME

this morning. Do you know anything about this COLONEL GRINKO?

COLONEL GRINKO

(Defensive)

It was only a rumor, only a rumor.

MAJOR SERGEYEV do we have any new information on IVAN V'S whereabouts?

MAJOR SERGEYEV

(Caught off guard)

IVAN V is like a myth, nobody has

ever seen him, so how would anybody know he was here?

SOLONITSYN

(More pissed)

You two better be right, because

if something happens to this

launch because of sabotage you

two will go to the salt mines

for the rest of your miserable

lives.

This last edict by the launch director has made the security people very uneasy.

COLONEL GRINKO

(Last defensive move)

What could one man do, we have security people everywhere.

IVAN V is just a myth!

SOLONITSYN

(Losing control)

You don't have to be a genius to

put two and two together. The US

gave the Afghanistan's hundreds of STINGER  Missiles to use on our helicopters and jets and they never used them all up. (A beat.)

COLONEL GRINKO gets this far away look on his face.

SOLONITSYN

Hello COLONEL GRINKO is anyone home?

COLONEL GRINKO

(Really Pissed)

Your saying sir, that IVAN V or

somebody else could shoot down

our PROTON ROCKET with a stinger

missile?

SOLONITSYN

DA, you dummy, do I have to spell

it out for you!

GRINKO gets up and storms out of the room with MAJOR SERGEYEV right behind him.

COLONEL GRINKO

I will check the area myself!

Come on MAJOR SERGEYEV, take

the lead out!

Launch Director ANATOLI SOLONITSYN turns the

TV back on.

NEWSCASTER

The space station will not be inhabitable until a service module where the astronauts will live and life-support systems are launched

and attached to the ZARYA. The

ZARYA, with a design based on modules of older Soviet space stations, cost $200 million. The first crews are not expected to live on the space station until January 2000 at the earliest.

ANATOLI SOLONITSYN turns off the TV and shakes his head.

CUT TO:

EXT.
FORMER SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

EXT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME - LIGHT RAIN

Tiled roofs, the stark white stucco of a TEST CENTER with Black iron bars on all the windows.  A large

case is being carried by a tall thin bearded man.

He finds a comfortable place under a large tree on

a small rock outcropping one mile from the BAIKONUR COSMODROME.

CLOSE ON THE CASE

There are white stencils on a drab green camouflage background that indicate the contents of the case.

STINGER MISSLE STINGER (DOD) A LIGHTWEIGHT,

PORTABLE, SHOULDER-FIRED, AIR DEFENSE ARTILLERY MISSILE WEAPON FOR LOW ALTITUDE AIR DEFENSE OF

FORWARD AREA COMBAT TROOPS. USA FIM-92A.

THE CASE SNAPS OPEN.

He looks admirably at this beautiful weapon of mass destruction.

He gently removes it from the rubber foam lined case and positions it on his shoulder and takes careful aim at the huge proton rocket.

His mind begins to wander.

CUT TO:

FLASHBACK

EXT.
KABUL AFGHANISTAN -  DAY

EXT.
AFGHANISTAN MOUNTAINS

INT.
MUJAHADEEN CAMP

We're no longer in the former SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN BAIKONUR COSMODROME but in a vast marshland.  Not in the present, but in the past.

A group of men are seen sitting on the floor in a large tent.

The sun sparkles over the top of the tent.

A CIA contract agent a tall man in his early fifties, is seen holding a STINGER Missile and is in the process of training the MUJAHADEEN.

IVAN V is sitting in the audience with BEN LADEN and the MUJAHADEEN chiefs.

CIA AGENT

The Stinger is a portable, shoulder-fired, infra-red homing heat seeking air defense guided missile. The Stinger is designed to counter high-speed, low-level, ground attack aircraft. The Stinger employs a unique Rosette Scan Pattern image scanning technique that allows it to discriminate among targets, flares, and background clutter.

He points to parts of the stinger missile resting on his shoulder.

CIA AGENT  (Cont.)

The Stinger is also unique in that it possesses the Target Adaptive Guidance technique which biases missile orientation toward vulnerable portions of the aircraft and assures maximized lethality. This superior lethality is derived from hit-to-kill accuracy, high warhead lethality, and the impact force of Stinger's kinetic energy generated by speeds of up to Mach 2.0.

Ivan V raises his hand and gets the agents attention.

IVAN V

Will it bring down a Russian HINDS helicopter?

CIA AGENT  (Cont.)

Yes, of course!

IVAN V

Last week Ben Laden and I tried to bring a HINDS down with a STINGER and we couldn't!  So took a hundred year old 60 caliber black powder rifle and shot the blade off the rear rotor.

CIA AGENT

What happened?

IVAN V

It came down!

The crowd roars with laughter. (A beat.)

CIA AGENT  (Cont.)

Good. (A beat)  The Stinger also possesses characteristics favorable

to today's force projection Army.

The Stinger is highly deployable because it's a lightweight, self-contained air defense system that

can be rapidly deployed on many military platforms in any combat situation.

IVAN V

Unless it is HINDS!

The crowd roars again with laughter.

CIA AGENT  (Cont.)

Yes. (A beat) The Stinger's Fire-And-Forget ability also increases the survivability of its crew. Stinger's Fire-And-Forget technology allows gunners and platforms to take cover or engage new targets immediately after firing. The Stinger Missile also has a low life-cycle cost. The Stinger is issued as a certified round of ammunition, so it requires no field maintenance or associated logistical costs.

IVAN V

How much does it cost?

CIA AGENT

About 15 thousand American!

BIN LADEN

Too much money.  I will use hundred year old black powder rifle?

The crowd snickers.

CIA AGENT

The STINGERS are a gift from the United States of America, so cost

is not a consideration. (A beat)

The most popular form of the

Stinger is the Man portable Air Defense System. The MANPADS

system weighs 34.5 pounds and

consists of the missile, disposable launch tube, detachable grip

stock, and integral IFF system.

The MANPADS is currently fielded

by all US forces.

BIN LADEN

How do you arm the Missile?

The agent points to a small lever.

CIA AGENT This lever up is armed, down it's unarmed.

BIN LADEN

Why would you want to shoot a  missile that is not armed?

CIA AGENT

If your target is an airliner and the missile is unarmed, it will punch a hole in the cabin and the plane will decompress and explode. No evidence of any explosive residue will be found

In the wreckage.

CUT TO:

BACK TO CURRENT TIMES

EXT.
FORMER SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

EXT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME - LIGHT RAIN

We're no longer in Afghanistan but are now in the former SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN, BAIKONUR COSMODROME.  Not in the past, but in the present.

Ivan has found a comfortable place under a large

tree on a small rock outcropping one mile from

the BAIKONUR COSMODROME.

CLOSE ON IVAN V TALKING TO HIMSELF

IVAN V

If your target is an airliner and the missile is unarmed, it will punch a hole in the cabin and the plane will decompress and explode. No evidence

of any explosive residue will be

found In the wreckage.

He ADMIRES this beautiful weapon of mass destruction.

CUT TO:

EXT.
FORMER SOVIET REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

EXT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME - LIGHT RAIN

INT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME VIP OBSERVATION ROOM

The Russian Space representatives are all waiting

for the first launch by a RUSSIAN PROTON BOOSTER ROCKET to place in orbit the first components

for the INTERNATIONAL SPACE STATION ALPHA. The

count down has resumed and they are at launch

minus ten minutes.

SOLONITSYN

(Pissed)

Has anyone heard from

COLONEL GRINKO?

AIDE

COLONEL GRINKO AND MAJOR SERGEYEV

are still in the field, sir.

SOLONITSYN

(Tense)

They better be!

This last statement by the launch director has made the launch staff very uneasy.

CUT TO:

EXT.
REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

EXT.
BAIKONUR COSMODROME

IVAN V is still sitting under a large tree on

a small rock outcropping one mile from the

BAIKONUR COSMODROME.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

He gently positions the STINGER MISSILE on his shoulder and takes careful aim at the huge

proton rocket. He checks to make sure the

missile is NOT ARMED.

He's concentrating on the aiming and setting of

the computer lock-on that he fails to see the

HINDS Attack Helicopter coming in from his left

at a very low altitude. The Proton rocket ignites

with a huge billow of smoke generating from the

base of the rocket. A few seconds later the roar

is heard blocking out the noise of the HINDS.

CLOSE ON HINDS

The side door opens exposing a gunner who has now placed IVAN V in the cross hairs of his machine gun.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

He smiles as he starts to squeeze the trigger to let the missile fly.

CLOSE ON HINDS

The gunner has now pressed the trigger and with IVAN V in the cross hairs of his machine gun lets loose with a volley of gunfire.

CLOSE ON IVAN V

Quickly the gunfire has turned IVAN V into a globe of flesh and blood.

CLOSE ON HINDS

The HINDS ATTACK HELICOPTER makes a low pass and when they say the threat is eliminated it comes in very close hovering over what is left of IVAN V.

The PROTON rocket is seen streaking into the sky.

CUT TO:

EXT.
MOSCOW RUSSIA

EXT.
PRESIDENTS PALACE - CONFERENCE ROOM

The setting is one of great rejoicing as the

leaders of the government are celebrating

the death of IVAN V the Terrorist who was

caught trying to shoot down the PROTON Rocket with a STINGER MISSILE. More than a dozen elder statesmen are seen sitting around a large conference table eating Beluga Caviar and drinking Vodka. The Secretary General ERIK

KOLSKI is speaking.

KOLSKI

(Elated)

Parliament has overwhelmingly decided to forgive the defaulted Mongolian loans, upon receipt of the IVAN the terrible sale document.

The men in the group look at each other.

CLOSE ON MAN SITTING NEXT TO KOLSKI.

ANTON KHAN the Minister of Defense looks at the council.

KHAN

Excellent?

The entire assembly toasts the Russia they love so much who has become stronger than ever.

KHAN

Pity I had 600,000 troops that  could have easily taken Mongolia!

KOLSKI

Yes, of course Anton.

CUT TO:

EXT.
NEW YORK CITY NEW YORK   SNOWSTORM

EXT.
CHRISTIES AUCTION HOUSE

The setting is CHRISTIE'S presentation room

where the highlight of the day is a rare

Indian art Masterpiece. The piece is on a

display pedestal and is covered with a blue

drop cloth. The Auctioneer is COLEMAN COLLINS.

COLLINS

(excited)

And a good afternoon ladies and gentleman. My goodness I just

had a Russian master painting

sell for 20 million last moth,

let's see how we do on this

one. DE JA VU!

He removes the drop cloth and an overhead spotlight makes the art piece come to life.

He adjusts his pin-on-mike and folds his hands.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

And now to this remarkable piece by

a Little known INDIAN PAINTER AND ICONOGRAPHER. His life spanned, roughly, the years 1400 - 1450.

The crowd is squirming and he still has their total attention.

CLOSE ON A WELL DRESSED INDIAN MAN

We can see his name tag and his auction ID.

MOHAMMED MOLJI INDIAN CONSULATE GENERAL.

He's in his middle thirties, wearing a

full beard and turban.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Oh, by the way during the inspection

by Christie's experts we x-rayed the piece and there seems to be a

document of some kind attached to

the oil painting cloth and of course considering the value of this piece

we elected not to remove it.

CLOSE ON AN PAKISTANI MAN

We can see his name tag and his auction ID.

PAVI PATE PAKASTAN CONSULATE GENERAL. He's

in his late thirties, serious looking, full

beard and turban. He has a fixation on the painting.

COLLINS  (Cont.)

Ok, SHALL WE GET STARTED!

FADE OUT

THE END

